OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
Date: Thursday 22 March 2018
Time: 7.00 pm
Venue:

Committee Room THB-06, Town Hall, Brixton Hill, London SW2 1RW

Copies of agendas, reports, minutes and other attachments for the Council’s meetings are available on
the Lambeth website. www.lambeth.gov.uk/moderngov

Members of the Committee
Councillor Edward Davie (Chair), Councillor Jacqui Dyer (Vice-Chair), Councillor Matt Parr (Vice-Chair),
Councillor Andrew Wilson (Vice-Chair), Councillor Tim Briggs, Councillor Rezina Chowdhury and
Councillor Fred Cowell
Co-opted Members
Lynette Murphy-O'Dwyer and Mrs Penny Smith-Orr

Further Information
If you require any further information or have any queries please contact:
Jacqueline Pennycook, Telephone: 020 7926 2167; Email: jpennycook@lambeth.gov.uk
Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting and the venue is fully accessible. If you have
any specific needs please contact Facilities Management (020 7926 1010) in advance.
Queries on reports
Please contact report authors prior to the meeting if you have questions on the reports or wish to inspect
the background documents used. The contact details of the report author are shown on the front page of
each report.

@LBLdemocracy on Twitter http://twitter.com/LBLdemocracy or use #Lambeth
Lambeth Council – Democracy Live on Facebook http://www.facebook.com/

Digital engagement
We encourage people to use Social Media and we normally tweet from most Council meetings. To get
involved you can tweet us @LBLDemocracy.
Audio/Visual Recording of meetings
Everyone is welcome to record meetings of the Council and its Committees using whatever, nondisruptive, methods you think are suitable. If you have any questions about this please contact Democratic
Services (members of the press please contact the Press Office). Please note that the Chair of the
meeting has the discretion to halt any recording for a number of reasons including disruption caused by
the filming or the nature of the business being conducted.
Persons making recordings are requested not to put undue restrictions on the material produced so that it
can be reused and edited by all local people and organisations on a non-commercial basis.

Representation
Ward Councillors may be contacted directly to represent your views to the Council: (details via the website
www.lambeth.gov.uk)

Security
Please be aware that you may be subject to bag searches and asked to sign in at meetings that are held
in public. Failure to comply with these requirements could mean you are denied access to the meeting.
There is also limited seating which is allocated on a first come first serve basis, you should aim to arrive at
least 15 minutes before the meeting commences. For more details please visit: our website.
Please contact Democratic Services for further information – 020 7926 2170 – or the number on the front
page.
Map

Travel Information
Buses
196, 2, and 3 from Herne Hill/Peckham and Crystal Palace direction stop outside the civic centre.
118, 333, 45, 133, 59, 159 from Streatham direction and stop outside the Town Hall.
37 and 35 stops outside the Assembly Hall on Acre Lane.
Tube Station
Brixton Underground and Overground Stations are a 7 minute walk way.

AGENDA

PLEASE NOTE THAT THE ORDER OF THE AGENDA MAY BE CHANGED AT THE MEETING
Page
Nos.

1.

Declaration of Pecuniary Interests
Under Standing Order 4.4, where any councillor has a Disclosable
Pecuniary Interest (as defined in the Members’ Code of Conduct (para. 4))
in any matter to be considered at a meeting of the Council, a committee,
sub-committee or joint committee, they must withdraw from the meeting
room during the whole of the consideration of that matter and must not
participate in any vote on that matter unless a dispensation has been
obtained from the Monitoring Officer.

2.

Minutes of Previous Meeting

1-8

To agree the minutes of the meeting of 1 February 2018 as an accurate
record of the meeting.

3.

Burst Water Mains

9 - 24

(All Wards)
Portfolio:
Cabinet Member for Housing & Environment: Councillor Jennifer
Brathwaite
Cabinet Member for Healthier & Stronger Communities (inc Emergency
Planning): Councillor Mohammed Seedat
Contact for Information: Gary O’Key, Lead Scrutiny Officer; 020 7926 2183;
gokey@lambeth.gov.uk

4.

Update on Organisational Redesign - Targets and Savings Proposal
(All Wards)
Portfolio: Deputy Leader (Policy): Councillor Imogen Walker
Report Authorised by: Jackie Belton: Strategic Director for Corporate
Resources
Contact for Information: Andy Ralphs, Interim Director IT & Customer
Services, aralphs@lambeth.gov.uk

25 - 34

5.

Healthier High Streets Scrutiny Commission Report

35 - 62

(All Wards)
Portfolio: Cabinet Member for Healthier and Stronger Communities:
Councillor Mo Seedat
Report Authorised by: Sue Foster: Strategic Director for Neighbourhoods
and Growth
Contact for Information: Jamie Akinola, Head of Community Safety,
Neighbourhoods & Growth, 0207 926 8976, jakinola@lambeth.gov.uk

6.

2017/18 Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme
(All Wards)
Portfolio: Deputy Leader of the Council (Finance and Resources):
Councillor Imogen Walker
Report Authorised by: Jackie Belton: Strategic Director for Corporate
Resources
Contact for Information: Gary O’Key, Lead Scrutiny Officer; 020 7926 2183;
gokey@lambeth.gov.uk

63 - 86

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 1

Agenda Item 2

O&SC
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
Thursday 1 February 2018 at 7.00 pm
MINUTES
PRESENT:

Councillor Edward Davie (Chair), Councillor Andrew Wilson (ViceChair), Councillor Tim Briggs, Councillor David Amos, Councillor
Saleha Jaffer and Councillor Vaila McClure

APOLOGIES:

Councillor Jacqui Dyer, Councillor Matt Parr and Councillor Jack
Holborn

ALSO PRESENT:

Councillor Jennifer Brathwaite and Councillor Imogen Walker

Action
required by
1.

DECLARATION OF PECUNIARY INTERESTS
The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting.
Apologies for absence were noted.
There were no declarations of pecuniary interest.

2.

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on 7 December 2017 be
approved as an accurate record of the proceedings.

3.

HOUSING FIRE SAFETY UPDATE
The Cabinet Member for Housing and Environment, Councillor Jennifer
Brathwaite, introduced the report and stated that:





She wanted to assure everyone that the Council was doing all it could
to enhance fire safety in the borough
Lambeth had been commended by the fire brigade for the way in
which it was dealing with fire risk. Monthly corporate meetings were
held with the fire brigade
All buildings requiring a fire risk assessment (FRA) had one, and
actions were being prioritised according to risk
Lambeth was one of the few councils undertaking enhanced
FRA3s/4s on its 27 medium and high rise blocks which had some form
of cladding

Page 2





The FRA3s/4s would be published on the website once conversations
had taken place with affected residents. FRA1s (the most basic level
of assessment) would be available to the public on request
An app was expected to be launched later in the year enabling real
time reporting of fire risk assessments
FRAs would be part of estate action plans which would be checked
monthly
A report was expected by the end of March on the technical and
financial viability of retrofitting sprinklers

In response to questions from Members of the committee, Sue Foster
(Strategic Director, Neighbourhoods & Growth), Neil Wightman (Director,
Housing Services), Su Gomer (Assistant Director, Housing Capital and Asset
Management) and Gary Mitchell (Head of Repairs), made the following
points:















With regards to vulnerable residents who may not speak good
English, the fire safety FAQs explained in various languages that the
Big Word facility was available should residents require translations
Estate action plans were being agreed with Tenant and Resident
Associations (TRAs) and this process would also help identify
vulnerable residents who may need additional assistance
It was essential that TMOs be given the chance to go through their
estate FRAs with officers in order to fully understand the information
presented before publication
The council was inputting directly into the Hackitt review of building
regulations and fire safety and was working to address the likely
findings pre-emptively as much as possible
One key issue emerging from the Hackitt review was the importance
of understanding fully the profile of each building over its entire life
cycle, including all planned/capital works. Such information would be
recorded in the council’s asset management database
It was also vital that any council contractors involved in undertaking
any form of works to buildings needed to fully understand the profile of
the building
The fact that Lambeth removed and replaced cladding on the basis of
emerging information from the Building Research Establishment
(BRE) and Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government
(MHCLG) rather than wait for the formal outcome of the review of
building regulations meant costs had been maintained rather than
escalating, as was the case in some other authorities
It was accepted that local authorities had a role in tracking and
enforcement with regards to fire safety in housing association and
private sector stock in the borough under the 2004 Housing Act
It was acknowledged that residents had concerns regarding cladding
despite there being only one example in all the council’s stock of the
Aluminium Composite Material (ACM) style cladding found at Grenfell
Tower, and officers were looking into further testing and reassurance
The number of FRA actions changed on a daily basis. Anything
deemed an emergency was addressed right away while other actions
were dealt with as part of ongoing or planned maintenance
Historically there were many actions which had not been completed
relating to fire risk but the council was working to clear these. It was
noted that due to the number of actions added and completed each
month there would generally always be a baseline of around 2000
actions being addressed

Page 3














Regarding finances, £5.2 had been spent so far but this was likely to
rise. The Secretary of State had been written to with details of the
expenditure incurred on what the council considered essential works,
and feedback from MHCLG was awaited, though it was believed any
help from central government would be in the form of relaxation of
borrowing restrictions rather than reimbursement
At present all funds relating to fire safety works were coming from the
Housing Revenue Account (HRA) and housing capital programmes;
this meant efficiency savings were necessary and the delivery of the
Lambeth Housing Standard (LHS) programme was being assessed on
an ongoing basis
There could be further cost implications with regards to sprinklers
depending on the decision taken once the feasibility report had been
produced. It was suggested that the committee may wish to revisit this
issue at that point
It was noted that LHS works themselves, including improvements in
wiring and fire doors, played a role in addressing fire safety issues
Efficiencies in other parts of the Housing directorate, such as
responsive repairs, had partially offset the cost of fire safety works
As the managing agent of Myatt’s Field North under the Private
Finance Initiative (PFI) contract, Regenter were responsible for fire
safety on the estate. Officers confirmed Regenter had provided all the
necessary FRAs and a meeting was being held with the Director to
ensure the information submitted was complete; however, Members
raised concerns regarding a lack of diligence historically when it came
to health and safety related works at Myatt’s Field North and
requested further detail on how this was being managed
The Mayor of London’s new draft London Plan made reference to the
fact that fire risk needed to be addressed via planning as well as
building control and Lambeth’s response to the consultation would
highlight this
Any decision on sprinklers would be based on evidence; this included
findings from FRAs and assessment of certain criteria such as
structural aspects of each building. It was vital to ensure any such
intrusive interventions would actually make people safer. No decisions
would be taken without first engaging with residents

The Cabinet Member
involved in responding
particular Su Gomer
Management), whose
reassurance.

for Housing and Environment thanked all officers
to the challenges around fire safety post-Grenfell, in
(Assistant Director, Housing Capital and Asset
competence and hard work gave her particular

The Chair echoed these sentiments, adding that the commendation from the
fire brigade offered further confidence; nonetheless the committee planned to
continue its oversight of fire safety in the coming months.
RESOLVED:
1. That the report on the feasibility of retrofitting sprinklers referred to by
the Cabinet Member for Housing and Environment be provided to the
committee when available in order that Members can fully understand
the technical and financial considerations
2. That the committee has concerns regarding the diligence of Regenter
historically in relation to undertaking health and safety-related works at
Myatt’s Field North and therefore requests more detail on how

Page 4
Regenter are responding to the Fire Risk Assessments undertaken on
the estate and resultant actions required
4.

REVENUE AND CAPITAL BUDGET REPORT 2018/19 TO 2020/21
The Deputy Leader of the Council (Finance and Resources), Councillor
Imogen Walker, introduced the report and stated that:






This was a challenging time for local government, with significant
funding cuts over the past few years
A funding gap of £40.7m had been identified. The report detailed how
this would be addressed
The planned rise in council tax, together with prudent financial
management and a focus on efficiencies and income generation,
would enable the council to fund vital services
There were no savings planned in Children’s Services for 2018/19
while the improvement journey continued
The recommendations to Cabinet and Council contained within the
report provided a helpful overview of the proposals; this included
exempting care leavers from council tax until they reached 25

In response to questions from Members of the committee, Christina
Thompson (Director, Finance and Property), Jackie Belton (Strategic Director,
Corporate Resources), Sue Foster (Strategic Director, Neighbourhoods &
Growth) and Helen Charlesworth-May (Strategic Director, Adults and Health)
made the following points:








The business rates pooling arrangement was a pilot and as such the
amount that would be received was an estimate; also since this was a
one off it would be taken into reserves
There were concerns that the council could potentially be left with
historic housing benefit debt with the introduction of universal credit
since the mechanisms by which debt was currently recovered would
no longer exist. Lobbying was being done via the Local Government
Association and London Councils but Members stressed the
importance of taking as strong a line as possible with the Department
for Work and Pensions on this to ensure the historic debt would
transfer back
The £8.5m overspend on Children’s Services mainly related to Special
Educational Needs (SEN) expenditure, the key elements of which
were Education, Health & Care (EHC) plans and SEN transport
It was noted that the council had no control over demand when it
came to EHC plans, which made expenditure difficult to manage. An
increase of £1m in the contribution made directly from schools’
budgets had been agreed with the Schools Forum and the council
would also be liaising with the Department for Education (DfE) for
further transfer of funds from the School block of the Dedicated
Schools Grant (DSG), However, Members believed more focus was
needed on this, particularly regarding the identification and
management of future demand, which would require working together
with partners such as the Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG). It was
also felt that the funding system did not match the demand and the
DfE should consider reforming it
On SEN transport, it was noted that the new contract was now in
place and this should deliver efficiencies but the number of children
using the service had also increased, meaning some pressures were

Page 5


















continuing. Work was being done with assisted travel plans to try to
alleviate some of this
It was confirmed that the increases in the schools and high needs
blocks of the Dedicated Schools Grant were below inflationary
increases in costs and so amounted to a real terms cut
Lambeth’s reserves were the second lowest in London. The current
level of forecast reserves and balances was 5.2% of current net
expenditure, which was at the lower end of the desired range (5-10%).
The aim was to reach 10% over the next five year period and a plan
would be put in place to achieve this once there was more clarity on
the various unknowns which currently existed around future funding,
principally the outcome of the London business rates retention pilot
and Fair Funding review
The modelling was predicated on baseline council tax increases so it
was possible more income could be generated in future if housing
development increased
The council tax support scheme had been agreed at Full Council on
24 January. This involved a discretionary fund of £400k which could
be used to support residents who fell outside the criteria but were in
need of help. Equalities considerations were key in relation to the
decisions made on council tax support
The care leavers relief scheme was praised. This would cost
approximately £150k, which would reduce the council tax collection
fund
The borrowing required to fund the Redress Scheme meant the
minimum revenue provision (MRP) would increase. Under the
scheme, money would be borrowed as required as cases came
forward and regular monitoring returns would be made to MHCLG.
The interest rate with the Public Works Loan Board was fixed for the
duration of the loan, and the rate would be set at the point the loan
was taken out. Rates were currently at reasonably low levels, but the
additional borrowing gave rise to constraints in potential investment in
commercial opportunities
There had been three consultations on prudential borrowing and the
MRP framework changes
Members felt there needed to be more focus on opportunities for
increasing income streams and reducing costs, notwithstanding the
redress scheme. The social housing investment fund, which had
provided the council with 79 properties for use as temporary
accommodation, saving £6k per family unit while also achieving
investment income, was highlighted as a good example. Officers
explained that a commercial strategy was expected in the coming
financial year which would look at these issues in greater detail and
Members expressed an interest in this coming back to Scrutiny
The Asset Management Cabinet Advisory Panel of Members existed
to review options appraisals whenever council assets were surplus to
requirements, or suitable acquisition opportunities were offered, to
help decide on the best way of maximising assets
The disposals list (Appendix 6a) was based on current property prices
Members asked about the implications for Lambeth of the recent
collapse of Carillion and the financial problems being experienced by
Capita. Officers responded that Carillion had been working on
Fenstanton School but these works were already complete and paid
for. A subcontractor of Carillion was also involved in the Hambrook
House development and contract managers had been asked to review
business continuity plans and assurance relating to this and around a

Page 6









dozen other contractors perceived to be high risk. Lambeth’s exposure
to Capita was much greater; they were taking action to improve their
balance sheet and their cash flow was better than Carillion’s but the
situation was being closely monitored, with further information being
requested. It was stressed that due diligence was carried out before
signing any contracts or contract extensions but if Members had any
information which suggested poor performance or signs of trouble in
relation to any organisations providing services for the council, this
should be reported to the Deputy Leader (Finance and Resources)
Members believed the reporting of fees and charges could be
improved in future by including more information on the criteria used
to decide on the appropriate levels at which to set them, as well as
more detail on benchmarking. This would give reassurance in terms of
the rationale for decision making
There was a fair degree of confidence regarding the majority of the
£4.9m of savings proposals. £4.2m of this was due to increases in
income of which £1.9m related to parking
It was noted that the government had agreed that planning fees could
be increased by up to 20% and this would likely drive additional
income
The savings related to nursing homes were based on activity currently
being carried out. Fewer care beds were required as more residents
were supported to live in their own homes but the number of beds
needed by the CCG for continuing care had risen; the CCG would
therefore pay for beds that would otherwise not be used to their full
benefit. It was stressed that no reduction of service to Lambeth
residents was expected
Members noted that £200k of savings were planned in relation to
public health, on top of successive disproportionate cuts from central
government. This was in the form of a cut to the offender health
budget, which would now come via a different funding stream, and a
redesign of smoking cessation services. Officers believed the savings
were reasonable and deliverable; however the Chair stressed that
investment in public health led to savings elsewhere in the system and
therefore any efficiencies should be directed back into public health

The Deputy Leader of the Council (Finance and Resources) concluded by
stating that a strong case could be made for retaining funding in practically
every area but that the budget report sought to ensure the council could
continue protecting the most vulnerable residents while providing good
universal services.
RESOLVED:
1. That the committee notes the additional resources being put in to
attempt to collect more historical housing benefit overpayment debt,
along with the fact that lobbying is taking place via London Councils
and the Local Government Association regarding the possibility of
transferring this debt back to the Department for Work and Pensions
once Universal Credit has been rolled out, but wishes to see efforts
redoubled in this regard
2. That the committee is pleased to see the new SEN transport contract
commence, albeit after much delay, but requests future updates to
reassure Members that expected savings are being realised and
service levels are being met
3. That more focus is needed on the pipeline of demand with regards to

Page 7

4.
5.

6.

7.

8.

5.

children with special educational needs and disabilities (SEND) who
will require Education, Health and Care (EHC) plans when they start
school, and that central government be lobbied regarding the need for
a funding system which better responds to the demand
That the committee notes the plans in place to replenish the Council’s
reserves but wishes to see these further strengthened
That the committee commends the work being done around the social
housing investment fund but that a greater focus is needed on
reducing costs and growing income streams more widely. The
committee notes that a Commercial Strategy is expected in the
coming financial year and wishes to further explore this matter at the
appropriate juncture
That the committee notes its concerns at recent developments
involving Capita and, while welcoming the reassurances given
regarding monitoring and business continuity planning, wishes to see
more detail on how this risk is being managed
That the reporting of fees and charges in the budget report be
enhanced in future to give more detail regarding how levels are set,
such as benchmarking and criteria used
That the Committee agrees with the King's Fund assessment that
'cuts to public health are the falsest of false economies' and
recommends that the Council does not make cuts additional to the
26% cut already being made to public health by central government.
Any efficiencies made in public health should be reinvested directly in
public health to prevent illness and treat people with addiction and
sexual health conditions. Prevent and treating illness early saves lives
and money.

2017-18 OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME
RESOLVED: That the work programme as drafted and the status of actions
be noted.
The Chair concluded the meeting by paying tribute to the huge contribution
made by Helen Charlesworth-May, outgoing Strategic Director for Adults &
Health, during her tenure and placing on record his appreciation for her hard
work and achievements, which had positively impacted on the borough and
its most vulnerable residents.

The meeting ended at 8.55 pm
CHAIR
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
Thursday 22 March 2018
Date of Despatch: Friday 9 February 2018
Contact for Enquiries: Gary O’Key
Tel: 020 7926 2183
E-mail: gokey@lambeth.gov.uk
Web: www.lambeth.gov.uk
The action column is for officers' use only and does not form a part of the formal record.

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 9

Agenda Item 3

Overview & Scrutiny Committee 22 March 2018
Report title: Burst Water Mains
Wards: All
Portfolio:
Cabinet Member for Housing & Environment: Councillor Jennifer Brathwaite
Cabinet Member for Healthier & Stronger Communities (inc Emergency Planning): Councillor Mohammed
Seedat
Contact for enquiries: Gary O’Key, Lead Scrutiny Officer; 020 7926 2183; gokey@lambeth.gov.uk

Report summary
This report recaps on the joint scrutiny work undertaken by Lambeth with other London Boroughs and the
Greater London Assembly (GLA) Environment Committee over the past 12-18 months and outlines the
events of March 2018 which have led to a renewed scrutiny focus on the causes and effects of, and
response to, water main bursts in the borough.

Finance summary
There are no direct capital or revenue implications arising from this report.

Recommendations
1.

To note the information contained within this report and those submitted by Thames Water.

2.

To use this, together with the information gleaned from questioning of invited guests at the meeting
(particularly Thames Water) to formulate observations/recommendations as appropriate.

Page 10
1.

Context

1.1

A series of major water main bursts occurred across London in late 2016, affecting a number of
boroughs including Lambeth, Islington, Hackney and Lewisham. As a result of this, a joint scrutiny
inquiry was set up by these boroughs, working with the Greater London Assembly (GLA)
Environment Committee. The aim of the inquiry was to seek to reduce the risk of flooding, to better
protect homes and businesses and to improve responses to flooding incidents.

1.2

Lambeth’s Overview and Scrutiny Committee agreed to establish a Burst Water Mains Scrutiny
Commission to look into the issues locally as part of this joint scrutiny. This commission held a oneoff meeting in April 2017 at which Thames Water representatives were questioned on burst trunk
main incidents in the borough over several years, principally in Herne Hill and Leigham Vale,
Streatham.

1.3

Following on from this, Lambeth representatives met with colleagues from the other boroughs and
the GLA to formulate a set of seven joint recommendations as follows:
(i)

That Thames Water improve their emergency response arrangements including instituting a
dedicated emergency response line for the reporting of leaks and investigating the possibility,
with the Metropolitan Police Service, of receiving a ‘blue light’ service from the Police should
a major incident be declared.

(ii)

That Thames Water improve and join up their monitoring system for detecting the likelihood
of bursts on major trunk mains.

(iii)

That Thames Water, when submitting their case to OFWAT for their future 5 year investment
plans, prioritise the phased improvement of ageing Victorian pipe replacement on major trunk
mains. This should be completed within a specified period to be determined and published
by Thames Water, but 15 years is proposed, given the problems that major bursts on these
roads cause to businesses and residents.

(iv)

That Thames Water develop and publish performance and attendance standards, both in
relation to major and minor pipe bursts.

(v)

That a clear and comprehensive compensation policy be developed by Thames Water,
covering clean up/insurance/compensation and goodwill payments. This should be clearly
communicated to customers and available on the company website. Compensation for
inconvenience should be formally recognised and included in the policy.

(vi)

That the Mayor, GLA and London Boroughs support the campaign of the Fire Brigade Union
to become the statutory Emergency Response Service for flooding, as recommended by the
Pitt Review in 2008, in view of the recent major bursts resulting in severe flooding and given
the fact that such occurrences are more likely in the future due to the ageing Victorian trunk
mains network across London.

(vii)

That the London Plan should include provision, when planning permission for basements is
being requested, to ensure that a risk assessment is carried out prior to approval to ensure
the risk to life of flooding is minimised.

1.4

Thames Water provided written responses to these recommendations to Lewisham’s Overview &
Scrutiny Committee in October 2017. These are attached at appendix 1.

1.5

In parallel with this, as part of their own response to the events of late 2016, Thames Water
commissioned an independent forensic review of their trunk main network, which examined the
causes of these major bursts. The review was conducted by Paul Cuttill OBE – an independent

Page 11
consultant with over 30 years’ experience in the utilities sector – and his final report (“the Cuttill
report”) was published on 24 March 2017. The report concluded that there was no common cause
and no systematic failings that could have been said to have consistently caused or enabled the
bursts; however Cuttll identified recommendations for improvement across four areas: asset
planning; asset operations and maintenance; asset monitoring; and event response and aftercare.
1.6

In response to the findings of the independent forensic review, Thames carried out their own Trunk
Mains Strategic Review, the final report of which was published on 2 October 2017. This sets out a
series of commitments to reduce the risk of burst water main events and the distress and disruption
they cause.

1.7

In early March 2018, the UK was hit by an extreme cold weather front which led to snow and subzero temperatures across much of the country, including London, for several days. Upon thawing, a
number of water mains burst, leaving thousands of households and businesses without water. This
was a particular issue in parts of London and the South East. The Streatham area was among the
worst hit, with schools being forced to close and some residents having their water supplies cut off
for up to five days.

2.

Proposal and Reasons

2.1

Following on from the events of March 2018 and in light of the previous work done by Lambeth
Scrutiny in conjunction with colleagues across the capital, the Chair requested that an item be added
to the agenda for this meeting to examine the causes of the bursts, the effects on residents,
businesses and infrastructure, and the response. Representatives from Thames Water have been
invited to attend as have Emergency Planning officers and relevant Cabinet leads from Lambeth
Council to give their perspective.

2.2

While this paper seeks to give a brief overview of the context, a further report was requested from
Thames Water to outline the causes and effects of, and response to, recent bursts, as well as an
update on progress against the joint recommendations referred to above. This is attached at
appendix 2 and should be used to inform questioning.

3.

Finance

3.1

There are no capital or revenue implications arising as a direct result of this report.

4.

Legal and Democracy

4.1

There are no legal or democratic implications arising from this report.

5.

Consultation and co-production

5.1

This item is being considered at a public meeting of the Council’s Overview & Scrutiny Committee.
Ward councillors and residents are welcome to attend the meeting and address the committee
(subject to time constraints) in order that their views and experiences can be heard and considered.
Any requests to speak at the meeting should be made via the Lead Scrutiny Officer (see contact
details at the head of this report).

6.

Risk management

6.1

N/A.

Page 12
7.

Equalities impact assessment

7.1

N/A

8.

Community safety

8.1

N/A

9.
9.1

Organisational implications
N/A

Audit Trail
Consultation
Name/Position

Lambeth
directorate/
department or partner
Councillor Ed Davie
Chair, Overview & Scrutiny
Committee
Alison McKane, Director of On behalf of Strategic Director,
Legal Services & HR
Corporate Resources
Sue
Foster,
Strategic Neighbourhoods & Growth
Director
Kristian
Aspinall, Neighbourhoods & Growth
Emergency Planning lead
Wayne Chandai, Head of Corporate Resources
Democratic Services &
Scrutiny
Nisar Visram, Assistant
Corporate Resources
Director Corporate
Finance
Andrew Pavlou, Legal Corporate Resources
Services
Jacqueline
Pennycook, Corporate Resources
Democratic Services

Date Sent

Date
Received

Comments
in para:

09.03.18
09.03.18

12.03.18

09.03.18
09.03.18

09.03.18

09.03.18

09.03.18

09.03.18

12.03.18

09.03.18

12.03.18

09.03.18

12.03.18

Report History
Original discussion with Cabinet Member
Report deadline
N/A
Date final report sent
Part II Exempt from Disclosure/confidential No
accompanying report?
Key decision report

No

Date first appeared on forward plan
Key decision reasons

N/A
N/A

Background information

Lambeth Burst Water Mains Scrutiny Commission:
Meeting papers (25 April 2017)
GLA Environment Committee papers:

Page 13
19 January 2017
15 June 2017
21 February 2018
LB Islington Policy & Performance Scrutiny Committee
papers:
20 December 2016
18 January 2017
8 March 2017
22 March 2017
20 April 2017
4 May 2017
20 July
5 October 2017
LB Lewisham Overview & Scrutiny Committee papers:
23 January 2017
31 October 2017
Thames Water Trunk Mains Forensic Review (‘Cuttill
report’) (24 March 2017)
Thames Water Trunk Mains Strategic Review (2 October
2017)
Appendices

Appendix 1: Thames Water response to joint scrutiny
recommendations (October 2017)
Appendix 2: Thames Water Note to LB Lambeth Scrutiny
14 March 2018

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 15

Page 16

Page 17

Page 18

Page 19

Appendix 2
Thames Water Note to LB Lambeth Scrutiny Committee
14 March 2018
a) Recent bursts and leaks in Lambeth
Introduction
We would like to apologise to all our customers in London who experienced interruptions to
their water supply following the freezing weather and rapid thaw that occurred during early
March.
Having restored supply to all our customers our priority is now to follow up with customers
and stakeholders, and understand what we need to do better in the future.
Background
Before the freezing conditions and snow, we had prepared carefully for the adverse
weather in detail, with 155 4x4 vehicles, snow ploughs, grit and extra teams braced across
our key operational sites and areas expected to be most impacted.
We ramped up production of water from our treatment works to try and match the surge in
demand, putting an extra 500 million litres per day into supply. That’s 25% above normal
and equivalent to 200 Olympic swimming pools.
Whilst we made extensive preparations for winter, this incident was unprecedented in terms
of scale and technically complex to resolve. Our teams worked round the clock to restore
supply. However we recognise we failed to protect our customers from the impact.
Areas impacted
The priority areas in the south of London we had identified on the basis of our customer
contacts were around SW16, SW17, SW18 and SW12, but there were many other postcode
areas impacted.
Resolving the issues
On Monday 5 March we isolated a leak on an 18 inch pipe in south London, repaired it and
brought the pipe back into use. This helped water levels recover during Monday 5th.
However water pressure still took a significant time to recover due to the need to clear air
locks in extensive strategic pipes across our south London network.
Priority users and vulnerable customers
We had customer representatives proactively contacting vulnerable customers. Dialysis
customers were identified and water provided to them. We also called all care homes in the
area.
In addition, we contacted schools in our priority areas to understand whether they had water
and what support we could provide them.

Page 20

Alternative water supplies
We opened bottled water locations across priority areas for several days, including at the
following locations.





Lidl Store, Streatham High Road, SW16 1BB
Tooting: Homebase, Woodgate Drive, SW16 5YP
Balham: Sainsbury’s car park in Balham High Road, SW12 9AU
Sydenham: High Level Drive, SE26 6XT

In response to feedback we did trial using vans in the SW postcode areas on a ‘milk round’
of affected areas. Each van took one pallet (500 bottles) at a time.
Communication
We are very sorry that not all customers could get through to us. Our contact centre took a
much higher number of telephone calls than normal and we re-deployed resources from our
billing teams to help take additional operational calls. We also used our website and social
media channels to keep customers updated.
We worked with multiple stakeholders to give updates on our position, including the GLA and
Boroughs. We also coordinated our messages through the London Resilience Forum and
the London Fire Brigade
Compensation
We absolutely understand the distress and inconvenience of being without water. For that
reason we will compensate affected customers over and above the statutory minimum of
£20 for more than 12 hours’ interruption. The amount we will compensate will depend on
how long customers were affected.
Customers will not have contact us or to do anything to make a claim to receive
compensation. We will be writing to everyone affected over the course of the 10 days.
Time Affected Compensation Payment
4-12 hours
£30
12-24 hours
£50
24-48 hours
£100
48+ hours
£150
Schools Impacted
We are very aware that the supply interruptions also led to the closure of some local schools
and significant disruption to teaching staff, parents and pupils. In recognition of this we will
make discretionary payments of £2,500 to each school. In addition we would like as many
schools as possible to take up our offer of an education package of visits to Thames Water
sites and talks by staff on STEM subjects.

Page 21

Lessons learnt
We would like to take this opportunity reassure customers that we are already applying
lessons that we learnt and we will be completing a full assessment to identify what we could
have done better.

b) Trunk mains review update
Background
Our total trunk main network spans 3,200km [or 10% of the total network]. 2,000km of this is
in London. These large pipes were historically laid along main transport routes, are harder to
work on, and have a greater impact if they burst.
In an average year, we have around 380 bursts on our trunk mains, of which around 54 are
on mains greater than 18 inches.
We invested £70m on re-lining and replacing trunk mains between 2005 and 2010. We had
originally committed £145m for the 2015 to 2020 regulatory period, but that has since been
increased by a further £97m during the next two-and-a-half years.
Our performance hasn’t been good enough, so we are committing more than was in our
original plan. At the same time, our investors have agreed not to receive an external
dividend this year.

Trunk Mains Strategic Review
On 2 October 2017 we published our Trunk Mains Strategic Review which sets out a clear
action plan which identifies 15 commitments designed to minimise the risk of similar bursts
happening in the future, and to improve the business’ response to such emergencies.
The commitments are in direct response to the Trunk Mains Forensic Review, led by Paul
Cuttill OBE, which was published earlier in 2017.
The thorough review commits us to a number of changes right across our business, many of
which we’ve already begun to implement.
The action plan will improve the way we manage our trunk mains and that through collating
better information about our network, coupled with better risk modelling, we can reduce the
impact on our customers.

Recent and near future upgrades
We recently completed the relining of 1 km of a 21” diameter pipe in Leigham Vale.

Page 22

We are also developing schemes in Palace Road and Norwood Road to replace the pipes in
poorest condition, as well as improving our knowledge of the condition of our network and its
performance.
A major programme to install trunk mains monitors is ongoing. By the end of this year (201718), we will have surveyed more than 1,200 km of our 3,200 km trunk mains network as part
of a proactive programme to find leaks before they deteriorate into failures.
So far we have found close to 200 trunk main leaks, saving 17 million litres of water per day,
and averting potentially more serious bursts.
Operations
We’ve boosted our operations teams and are in the process of enabling them to get to the
scene of an incident faster.
We’ve also recruited new customer response teams to act as a personal point of contact for
affected customers, and fully attend to their needs.
We’re improving our monitoring and control capabilities, to be able to react before a pipe
bursts, and hired experts at IBM and the University of Surrey to achieve this.
Customer
Our Customer Representative Team is now 15 Representatives strong and is fully
operational, providing a 24/7 response
As the Customer Representative Team size has increased we have also increased the
teams’ capability and functionality. Post event our Representatives are now making
Aftercare visits to offer support to our customers and help them get their lives back to
normal, and we are prioritising our resources to first support those most impacted.
We have also finalised our ‘Putting things right’ booklet which clearly outlines the support
available for customers following incidents of this sort, including answers to more detailed
matters including insurance.
We have signed up more than 220 people from across the business who volunteer as
Thames Water Customer Ambassadors and are sent out during events to help our
customers who need them most. Duties include handing out bottled water, answering
customer calls, looking after customers with additional needs or acting as a point of contact
during events
We have invested in our Digital Media Capability and have a 24/7 social team on point so we
can keep our customers informed during events. We have implemented a Lithium a social
listening tool that will bring non @thameswater mentions into our inbox and allow us to
respond proactively.
Surveys
We are forecasting to complete 1150 km of trunk main surveys by end of March. We have
detected 172 leaks, repairing 159 including 105 on trunk mains and 54 on smaller connected
mains. The proactive inspections have resolved over 15million litres per day of leakage and
we expect this to rise to 17million litres per day by the end of March.

Page 23

In our goal of identifying innovative methods for trunk main condition surveys we’re
investigating and trialling opportunities for in-pipe condition assessments for trunk mains. In
February we released a tender to build an above ground trunk main test rig at our Kempton
Park site that’ll be used to collaborate with numerous technology providers under controlled
conditions.

Priority work streams
Listed below are some of the activities we will be focusing on in the next few months


Establishing a dedicated night team working 7 days a week to enable a rapid
response to bursts and conduct important maintenance and testing that will aid our
response if and when an incident occurs.



Improving our risk assessment tools, for instance by moving to 2D rather than 1D
flood models. This enables us to better understand the consequences of a burst,
where the water from a burst would go, and better plan the actions required.



We are undertaking a complete review of our trunk mains monitoring strategy. This
includes a review of our trunk mains monitoring policy, increasing the accuracy of our
asset register, improving the operability of monitoring equipment installed in AMP5
(2010 to 2015), and having the right processes in place for 24/7 review and alert
response.

Longer term investment
Trunk mains are a high priority in our draft Business Plan for 2020 – 2025. We plan to
double the rate of trunk mains replacement.
In terms of leakage we are planning to reduce leakage by 15% by 2025, with our longer term
ambition being to reduce leakage by 50%.

Our draft Business Plan and draft Water Resources Management Plan.

a) Draft Business Plan
Every five years we rebuild our business plan using feedback we’ve collected from our
customers. We’ve already spoken to over 300,000 customers and collected detailed
feedback from 18,000 of them through events, surveys and our online tool to understand
what matters most to them. This feedback has helped us build our five year proposed plan,
starting in 2020. As well as this, it has helped to shape our long-term ambitions, so we are
steering our future with customers at the core.
We know it’s important to our customers and our stakeholders that bills are affordable and
good value for money, so this is what our proposed plan has been built around. However, we
have some decisions to make about how quickly we achieve our long-term ambitions, which

Page 24

could have an impact on customer bills. Because of this, we would like customers and
stakeholders to make some choices on what is most important to them.
b) Draft Water Resources Management Plan
We’ve also developed a draft Plan, called the draft Water Resources Management Plan
2019, which sets out how we plan to provide a secure and sustainable supply of water for
our customers over the next 80 years from 2020 to 2100. The plan forecasts the amount of
water we have available for water supply now and how it might change in the future. We
compare how much water we have with what we will need, to see if there is enough water or
a deficit.
The Plan looks at options to manage demand for water and provide additional water. Taking
account of information such as cost, environmental impact and customers’ preferences we
have developed a programme of options to ensure we can provide a secure and sustainable
water supply. Throughout the process we engage with our customers and stakeholders to
seek their input and challenge to inform the development of the draft Plan.
c) Consultation on our Plans
To read about our plans and see the choices we still need to make as well as find out how
you can participate in the conversation please visit www.thameswater.co.uk/yourwaterfuture.
The consultation is open until Sunday 29 April 2018.
Your comments and choices will help us shape, refine and finalise our Business Plan and
Water Plan. We’ll carefully consider all the responses we receive and at the end of the
conversation we’ll publish a report setting out how we have taken the comments into account
in revising our Plan.

Page 25

Agenda Item 4

Overview and Scrutiny Report – 22 March 2018
Report title: Update on Organisational Redesign – Targets and Savings Proposal
Wards: All
Portfolio: Deputy Leader (Policy): Councillor Imogen Walker
Report Authorised by: Jackie Belton: Strategic Director for Corporate Resources
Contact for enquiries: Andy Ralphs, Interim Director IT & Customer Services, aralphs@lambeth.gov.uk

Report summary
The council’s Future Lambeth change programme is focused on creating a smaller, more skilled, customer
focused council that meets the council’s considerable ambitions in terms of positive outcomes for our
residents and local businesses and delivers on our ambitious Borough Plan priorities, in a time of continued
financial constraint. We are focused on developing a highly-motivated, diverse, talented and properly
supported workforce delivering carefully identified outcomes to our residents and businesses.
Finance summary
The council agreed a £20m saving in respect of organisational redesign through the formal financial
planning process, and over the summer 2017 Table 1 was agreed by CMT, which sets out savings of
£20.3m, and confirms that to date we have delivered £4.7m, and therefore have £15.6m further savings
to deliver. The remaining target of £15.6m has been split across the identified work streams. No further
savings are expected to be delivered in 2017/18. Therefore the profiling of the remaining £15.6m has been
amended and is reflected in table 2, with slippage moved into 2018/19.
Business Support has now been centralised in Corporate Resources and therefore the Business Support
target has been moved from the other Directorates and into Corporate Resources. Table 3 confirms the
revised targets by Directorates and confirms the level of savings proposed so far against the remaining
organisational redesign target. Savings proposals of a further £6.5m still need to be identified and
confirmed.

Recommendations
1. To note the saving targets, proposals and progress on the Future Lambeth programme delivering
the organisation redesign savings 2016 to 2020.

Page 26

1.

Context

1.1

The council’s Future Lambeth change programme is focused on creating a smaller, more skilled,
customer focused council that meets the council’s considerable ambitions in terms of positive
outcomes for our residents and local businesses and delivers on our ambitious Borough Plan
priorities, in a time of continued financial constraint. We are focused on developing a highlymotivated, diverse, talented and properly supported workforce delivering carefully identified
outcomes to our residents and businesses.

1.2

Lambeth has a clear and ambitious vision to improve the borough for residents, businesses and
others through our ambitious borough plan. We acknowledge that customer expectations have
changed and will continue to change, we will respond by providing 24/7 on-line innovative selfservice customer contact and we will be open for business when our customers need us to be.

1.3

Our workforce remains our greatest asset, and we are investing in giving our workforce the skills and
tools they need to do an efficient and effective job.

1.4

Lambeth’s new town hall and Civic Centre brings us all together, will provides a more efficient and
sustainable working environment, and will enable us to redesign and digitalise the way we work so
we support services to meet the needs of our residents.

1.5

We are embracing and optimising the use of new technology, so that we have a ‘digital’ front door,
improved understanding of our customers and deliver improved customer processes and outcomes.

1.6

Building on this progress and central to the organisational redesign programme is the need to
continually improve the council's digital effectiveness so that we can deliver further improvements to
our residents. For example, in areas such as contact and assessment, the council will be looking to
improve accessibility and responsiveness to more and more Lambeth services by investing in digital
technologies and skills and provide the level of accessibility for all our citizens and members expect
and want, including those who are unable to engage digitally.

1.7

Currently we have achieved variable levels of channel shift and therefore we need to review this
across all services. To address this and other digital requirements we will develop a Customer and
Digital Strategy. This will support volume reduction on other channels such as the Contact Centre
and Customer Centre.

1.8

We are improving the technology available to staff, so are moving to Oracle cloud from April 2018
we have Office 365 and digitalised mail and we are embracing the functionality of SKYPE, which
has provided us with a new communication platform, telephony, video and instant messaging. We
are investing in supporting services to develop the skills and redesign processes to maximise the
use of our existing technology.

1.9

We will explore the potential of our customers using SKYPE to contact us, and this will form part of
our wider Digital strategy. This will require some detailed thought and service redesign particularly
where identification and verification is required.

Page 27

2

Organisation Redesign Proposals

2.1

The original organisational redesign saving target was set at £20m, with £16.8m to be delivered
between 2017/2018 and 2019/20. The savings target for Organisational Redesign is in addition to
the other saving proposals contributing to the budget for 2017-2020. Savings through organisation
redesign will also be delivered for the HRA but are not included in this savings target.

2.2

The proposals will support the implementation of a new emerging operating model for the digital age.
This is more than just implementing new technology and requires a large cultural and structural shift.
It also requires continuing collaboration between different parts of the council, and a positive attitude
and commitment across the council to moving to new ways of working.

2.3

CMT agreed the following targets and profiling of the Organisational Redesign work streams on 25 July 2017.

Table 1
Council Wide Summary

Organisational Redesign Target
Brought Forward Target from Prior Year
Forecast (Gap) / Surplus
Current (Gap) / Surplus

Total
Proposals
1,500,000
261,000
200,000
800,000
500,000
200,000
8,200,000
2,013,000
1,620,000
3,500,000
1,500,000
20,294,000

2016/17
1,500,000

2017/18
261,000
200,000
800,000
500,000
200,000
2,000,000
653,000
655,000

2018/19

2019/20

3,100,000

2,000,000
320,000
5,420,000
(4,000,000)
(1,126,000)
294,000

1,500,000

5,269,000

3,100,000
1,360,000
965,000
1,500,000
1,180,000
8,105,000

(20,000,000)

(10,000,000)

294,000

(8,500,000)

(422,000)
(8,500,000)
(3,653,000)

(5,578,000)
(3,653,000)
(1,126,000)

(5,727,000)

Delivered
1,500,000
261,000
200,000
800,000
500,000
200,000
581,000
653,000

4,695,000

To be
Delivered

7,619,000
1,360,000
1,620,000
3,500,000
1,500,000
15,599,000

Page 28

Deletion of VPRS Posts
N&G Org Saving
Director Restructure
Finance Restructure
ICT Savings
Democratic Savings
Senior Management & Middle Core
Business Support
Contact
Assessment (inc Complex)
Contract Management- Capita
TOTAL

Proposal Profile

2.4

The CMT table has now been updated to reflect that it is unlikely that any further saving delivery will happen in 2017/18. Therefore slippage has been
moved into 2018/19 and the items changed are highlighted in the table below.

Proposed Table 2
Council Wide Summary

TOTAL
Organisational Redesign Target
Brought Forward Target from Prior Year
Forecast (Gap) / Surplus
Current (Gap) / Surplus

Total
Proposals
1,500,000
261,000
200,000
800,000
500,000
200,000
8,200,000
2,013,000
1,620,000
3,500,000
1,500,000
20,294,000

2016/17
1,500,000

2017/18
261,000
200,000
800,000
500,000
200,000
581,000
653,000

2018/19

2019/20

4,519,000
1,360,000
1,000,000
1,500,000
1,180,000

3,100,000
620,000
2,000,000
320,000

1,500,000

3,195,000

9,559,000

6,040,000

(20,000,000) (10,000,000)

(422,000)
(8,500,000)
(5,727,000)

(5,578,000)
(5,727,000)
(1,746,000)

(4,000,000)
(1,746,000)
294,000

294,000

(8,500,000)

(5,727,000)

Delivered
1,500,000
261,000
200,000
800,000
500,000
200,000
581,000
653,000

4,695,000

To be
Delivered

7,619,000
1,360,000
1,620,000
3,500,000
1,500,000
15,599,000

Page 29

Deletion of VPRS Posts
N&G Org Saving
Director Restructure
Finance Restructure
ICT Savings
Democratic Savings
Senior Management & Middle Core
Business Support
Contact
Assessment (inc Complex)
Contract Management- Capita

Proposal Profile

Page 30
2.5

In response to the re-profiling of the remaining organisational redesign saving target £15.6m (as
per table above), the Directorate organisational redesign saving targets have also been re-profiled,
with Business Support now centralised within Corporate Resources the Directorate targets have
been updated.
Table 3 Directorate Savings

Adults & Public Health
Senior Management & Middle Core
Contact
Assessment (inc Complex)
Total

2018/19
£m
0.793
0.085
0.282
1.160

ORD TARGET
2019/20 2020/21
£m
£m
0.544
0.000
0.053
0.000
0.376
0.000
0.973
0.000

ORD TARGET
2018/19 2019/20 2020/21
Children's
Senior Management & Middle Core
Contact
Assessment (inc Complex)
Total

£m
1.364
0.347
0.423
2.133

£m
0.935
0.215
0.563
1.714

£m
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000

ORD TARGET
2019/20 2020/21
£m
£m
0.509
0.000
0.182
0.000
0.585
0.000
1.275
0.000

N&G
Senior Management & Middle Core
Contact
Assessment (inc Complex)
Total

2018/19
£m
0.742
0.293
0.438
1.474

Corporate Resources
Senior Management & Middle Core

ORD TARGET
2018/19 2019/20 2020/21
£m
£m
£m
1.678
1.151
0.000

Business Support
Contact
Assessment (inc Complex)
Contract Management- Capita
Total

1.360
0.276
0.342
1.180
4.836

0.000
0.171
0.456
0.320
2.098

0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000

Total
£m
1.337
0.138
0.658
2.133

Total
£m
2.299
0.562
0.986
3.847

Total
£m
1.251
0.475
1.023
2.749

Total
£m
2.829
1.360
0.447
0.798
1.500
6.934

ORD TARGET
2018/19 2019/20
TOTAL

9.603

6.060

2020/21
0.000

Note: The slight difference between totals in table 2 and 3 relates to rounding

Total
15.663

Page 31
2.6

Corporate Resources have developed detailed proposals to deliver senior management and middle
core savings and a number of restructure business cases are being developed and consulted on
currently and this will continue through 18/19 and 19/20.

2.7

Children’s Services are proposed to make savings on senior management and middle core in
19/20.

2.8

The Business Support proposals will be delivered in 18/19 and then the new service will be further
reviewed throughout 18/19 and 19/20. As the original FTE scope has reduced by 18 the savings
target will also reduce by approximately £200,000.

2.9

The Contract Management saving proposals have been agreed and will deliver in 18/19 and 19/20
as set out.

2.10

The remaining Organisational Redesign programme is planned to deliver savings of £15.7m over
the period 2018/19 to 2020/21. Service budgets currently reflect savings of £9.2m, this will reduce
by £200,000 to reflect the change in the scope of Business Support so leaving a balance of £6.7m
still to be identified. Work will continue to identify these further savings, and will be reported to
Cabinet in July, along with plans for early implementation of new savings to deliver during 2018/19.

3.

Update on Business Support Proposals

3.1

One of the first cross cutting projects of the Future Lambeth programme is the creation of a new
business support service by May 2018. Business Support is a vital component that underpins
critical activities right across the council, both in front line delivery as well as in our corporate
functions. Our current devolved business support model, means that we are not as effective and
as efficient as we could be. The devolved structure does not allow for many staff to develop beyond
their present role and a major feature of the proposal is to create more development opportunities.

3.2

The proposal will be redesigned to meet the needs of the council. The main aims of the Business
Support project are to;
•
•
•
•
•
•

Create an efficient Business Support service that provides administrative resource to the
whole organisation, focusing on localised functions with a smaller centralised element to
accompany this.
Creating a positive working environment that promotes apprenticeships, entry level roles and
clear, career progression
Directly support the new ways of working in YNTH
Targets financial efficiencies
Provides a number new job carved roles.
Go Live of May 2018

3.3

Although the proposals will lead to significant changes in how people work, the council is committed
to supporting staff by investing in a comprehensive learning and development plan and limiting any
potential redundancies, by keeping a large number of vacancies to help reduce any adverse impact
on permanent staff . We do expect there to be minimal redundancies.

3.4

The restructure of Business Support had an original savings target of £2m based on PWC
benchmarking. In 2017/18 Business Support is forecasting to underspend £413k due to planned
holding of vacant posts, these vacant posts will be deleted as part of the restructure of Business
Support. However since the original saving target was set the number of roles in scope have now
reduced by 18 posts and therefore the possible savings will need be revised to reflect this change.

Page 32
Business Support Analysis (FTE)
Directorate

3.5

Business
Support
(July 17)

scope

Business Support in
Final Scope (Feb 18)

Adults

32

28

Children’s

80

86

N&G

27

16

Corporate
Resources

76

67

Total

215

197

The table below reflects a summary of the savings to be realised from this proposal for 2018/19. The
total costs have been calculated based on the highest spinal point within each pay grade.
Summary of Financial Savings
Phase One Savings
Banked savings
Vacant positions
Vacant agency positions x 7
Total

Total
£650,000
£858,415
Approx. £100,000
(50% part year effect)
£1,608,415

4

Finance

4.1

Finance comments are provided throughout the report.

5

Legal and Democracy

5.1

This report is for information and therefore there are no legal implications arising directly from the
contents of the report. Legal advice and assistance will be provided in relation to the structural
changes arising from these proposals and consultation will need to be undertaken in accordance
with any statutory requirements and the Organisational Change Policy.

6

Consultation and Co-production

6.1

Any structural change resulting from any of these proposals will be subject to formal consultation
in-line with Organisational Change Policy

6.2

All directorates of the council will help redesign services and will also be consulted on the proposals
as they are developed and finalised.

Page 33
7

Risk Management

7.1

There are risks of slippage and/or under achievement of restructuring savings arising from the
outcome of the formal consultation process. Also significant work is required to identify and develop
new detailed savings proposals of £6.1m to be delivered across 18/19 and 19/20.

8

Equalities Impact Assessment

8.1

When undertaking any structural change the council applies and works within its policy framework,
This includes the Organisational Change Policy. This, as standard, requires an Equality Impact
Assessment (EIA) to monitor and mitigate the impact of the proposed structural changes in
diversity. The EIA will detail the current workforce profile, the effect on staff of any changes proposed
by the business plan, and any mitigating actions to ensure that the workforce remains representative
at all levels. Any issues identified through the EIA will be addressed appropriately before the
business case is submitted to the Strategic Director for approval. The purpose of the EIA is to ensure
that the Council complies with its public sector equality duty (Equality Act 2010).

9.

Staffing and Accommodation
As services are redesigned and structures changed we will ensure that we monitor and plan for any
potential implications on staffing and accommodation.

10.

Timetable for Implementation – indicative only

10.1 This is the indicative only timetable that will apply to the consultation on the new structure. The start
and end dates are subject to change depending on finalising the business case and the outcome of
the consultation
*Trade Union Formal Consultation
Start of Staff Consultation period
**End of Staff Consultation
Start of Management Review period
End of Management Review period
Assimilation panel
Announcement of new structure
Expressions of Interest Deadline
Assimilation Appeal Panel
Interviews
Phase one Go Live
Phase two

23rd April 2018
24th April 2018
8th June 2018
8th June 2018
22nd June 2018
26th June 2018
28th June 2018
2nd July 2018
2nd July 2018
10th July 2018
1st August 2018
September 18 onwards

Page 34
Audit Trail
Consultation
Name/Position
Councillor Imogen Walker
Andrew Travers
Jackie Belton
Strategic Director
Sue Foster
Strategic Director
Helen Charlesworth-May
Strategic Director
Annie Hudson
Strategic Director
Christina Thompson
Finance
Andrew Pavlou, Legal
Services
Nisar Visram
AD Finance

Lambeth directorate /
department or partner
Deputy Leader (Policy)
Chief Executive

Date Sent
09.03.18
09.03.18

Date
Received
13.03.18

Comments in
paragraph:

12.03.18

Throughout

Corporate Resources

09.03.18

Neighbourhoods & Growth

09.03.18

Adults & Health

09.03.18

Children’s Services

09.03.18

Corporate Resources

09.03.18

13.03.18

Corporate Resources

09.03.18

12.03.18

Corporate Resources

09.03.18

12.03.18

5.1

Report History
Original discussion with Cabinet Member
Report deadline
Date final report sent
Part II Exempt from Disclosure/confidential
accompanying report?
Key decision report
Date first appeared on forward plan
Key decision reasons
Background information

Appendices

09.03.18
13.03.18
No
No
N/A
N/A
Update on the Organisational Redesign Programme
(Overview & Scrutiny 13.07.17)
None.

Page 35

Agenda Item 5

Overview and Scrutiny Committee – 22 March 2018
Report title: Healthier High Streets Scrutiny Commission Report
Wards: All
Portfolio: Cabinet Member for Healthier and Stronger Communities: Councillor Mo Seedat
Report Authorised by: Sue Foster: Strategic Director for Neighbourhoods and Growth
Contact for enquiries: Jamie Akinola, Head of Community Safety, Neighbourhoods & Growth,
0207 926 8976, jakinola@lambeth.gov.uk
Report summary
The Healthier High Streets Commission was established in 2013. The Commission’s focus was on
improving the lifestyle choices available on the borough’s high streets and the resulting report contained
21 recommendations regarding off licences, fast food outlets, payday loan shops and bookmakers to
encourage businesses to offer healthier choices while also calling for tougher regulation where it’s
needed. The recommendations were incorporated into an action plan, and the latest updates are
attached (Appendix 1).
In addition a brief overview of the licensing process and summary of the Cumulative Impact policy in
Clapham are included in this report at Appendix 2 at the Committee’s request.
Finance summary
None arising from this report.
Recommendations
To note the third review of the action plan (Appendix 1).

Page 36
1.
1.1

Context
In 2013 the former Health and Adults’ Services Scrutiny Committee explored what the council
could do to improve the financial, mental and physical health of residents by promoting healthier
choices on offer on the borough’s high streets in relation to off licences, tobacco sales, fast food
takeaways, payday loans companies and betting shops.

1.2

The resulting report set out 21 recommendations aimed at businesses operating in these
categories and potential greater regulation. The final report of the Healthier High Streets Scrutiny
Commission was agreed by Cabinet on 21 March 2016, and progress against the report
recommendations has been reviewed on an annual basis. Attached at Appendix 1 is the final
review.

1.3

The report noted that the Council’s Local Plan had already adopted ideas suggested by the
Commission such as stopping takeaways setting up near schools, and that four of the Borough’s
town centres have new or refurbished council leisure centres. It also stated that ‘Lambeth has a
record number of Green Flag rated parks, and businesses like Blockworkout and the Vauxwall
Climbing Centre are encouraging more people to exercise’.

2.
2.1

Proposal and Reasons
The Commission’s report contained a wide range of recommendations to address its findings,
focusing primarily on enforcement and encouragement of ‘behaviour change’. The comprehensive
action plan addressed each specific recommendation. There has been progress against the
recommendations, however there are legislative and resource constraints to delivering against all
of these.

3.
Finance
3.1. There are no financial implications arising from this report.
4.
4.1

Legal and Democracy
There are no direct legal recommendations arising from the recommendations in this report. The
legal implications associated with the Commission’s recommendations have been considered and
addressed within the Action Plan.

5.
5.1

Consultation and co-production
Throughout the course of its work the Healthier High Streets Scrutiny Commission undertook a
number of exercises to gather the views of Members, residents and relevant experts.

6.
6.1

Risk management
Any risks associated with the recommendations have been detailed in the action plan responses
(Appendix 1).

7.
7.1

Equalities impact assessment
The issues outlined in the Healthier High Streets Scrutiny Commission report affect all our
communities but have a disproportionate impact on our most deprived residents. The response to
the recommendations as set out in the action plan will help mitigate the impact of unhealthy
lifestyle choices by encouraging more responsible business practices and regulation to reduce
harmful impacts on health where needed.

8.
8.1

Community safety
There are clear links between health and wellbeing and community safety, with alcohol for example
linked to both crime and anti-social behaviour. Alcohol can also make some people more vulnerable
and therefore at risk of becoming victims of crime.

Page 37
9.
9.1

Organisational implications
Environmental
None.

9.2

Staffing and accommodation
None.

9.3

Procurement
None.

9.4

Health
None.

10. Timetable for implementation
10.1 This is the third and final update on the progress of the action plan.

Page 38
Audit Trail
Consultation
Name/Position
Councillor Mo Seedat
Sue Foster
Raj Mistry
Andrew Ramsden,
Finance
Jean-Marc Moocarme,
Legal Services
Gary O’Key,
Lead Scrutiny Officer
Catherine Carpenter

John Bennett
Kevin Crook
Mina Mistry
Nagendar Bilon
Nicole Terrieux

Lambeth directorate/
department or partner
Cabinet Member for Healthier
and Stronger Communities
Strategic Director for
Neighbourhoods and Growth
Director: Environment
Corporate Resources

Date Sent
01.03.18

Date
Received
01.03.18

Comments
in para:
-

28.02.18

28.02.18

-

23.02.18
23.02.18

28.02.18
23.02.18

3.

Corporate Resources

23.02.18

23.02.18

Corporate Resources

22.02.18

22.02.18

4.
S4 of action
plan
Throughout

Delivery Lead Planning Strategy
and Policy Planning, Transport
and Development
Lead Commissioner, Growth,
Planning and Employment
Head of Neighbourhoods,
Neighbourhoods and Growth
Food Health and Safety
Manager
Principal Trading Standards
Officer
Licensing & Technical Services
Manager

13.02.18

20.02.18

action plan
(s4 s8; s21)

13.02.18

13.02.18

22.02.18

22.02.18

21.02.18

22.02.18

21.02.18

22.02.18

12.02.18

13.02.18

action plan
(s13 & s14)
action plan
(s8)
action plan
(s10 & s21)
action plan
(s15)
Throughout

Report History
Original discussion with Cabinet Member
Final report deadline to Democratic Services
09.03.18
Date final report sent
09.03.18
Part II Exempt from Disclosure/confidential
N/A
accompanying report?
Key decision report
No
Date first appeared on forward plan
N/A
Key decision reasons
N/A
Background information
Report of the Healthier High Streets Commission –
Cabinet 21 March 2016
Appendices

Appendix 1 – Action Plan
Appendix 2 – Licensing process overview and
brief summary of the Cumulative Impact policy in
Clapham

APPENDIX 1: Healthier High Streets Scrutiny Commission – Action Plan update as at March 2018.
RECOMMENDATION

RESPONSE (MARCH 2016)

RESPONSE (FEB 2017)

RESPONSE (MARCH 2018)

The revised Statement of
Licensing Policy ratified at
Council in January 2014
includes model hours for
different types of
establishments according to
area and all new Off Licence
applications have a suggested
terminal hour of midnight at the
latest.

The Council has now established a
timetable with regard to the review of
the existing Licensing Policy; this
process will assess whether there is
scope (legally) for the Council to
introduce a more restrictive policy
(terminal hours) in relation to Off
Licences.

The current Licensing policy includes the
following guidance on terminal hours for off
licences:
- Major Town Centres and strategic cultural
area: midnight daily
- District town centre: midnight daily
- Local centres/ Shopping parades: 11pm
daily
- Residential: 11pm daily
The current Licensing Policy expires on
29/01/19.

OFF LICENCES
1. There should be as
restrictive a policy on 24
hour off licences and the
granting of all new off
licences as possible.

The new Licensing Policy is also likely to
include guidance on opening hours for new
off-licence premises (as well as terminal
hours) - this seeks to address the availability
of alcohol in the early morning and therefore
to restrict sales which may encourage street
drinking and associated anti-social behaviour.
There are currently (as at 09/03/18) 371 off
licence premises in the borough which
includes supermarkets, convenience stores,
newsagents and petrol stations. 51 (13.75%)
of these licences are for 24 hours.
2. In consultation with local
residents the council
should restrict the number
of new licences by

We continue to listen to the
views and experiences of local
residents and councillors to
inform the work we do and we

The policy does not restrict the
number of licensed premises
(presumption against applications
only), however there is some largely

Cumulative impact policies aim not just to
address street drinking but also any wider
evidence-based negative impact of a high
concentration of licensed premises within a

Page 39

Consultation undertaken by Commissioning
to date on the new Licensing Policy indicates
that these hours are appropriate and will be
carried forward to the new Licensing Policy.

RECOMMENDATION
imposing Clapham High
Street style ‘saturation
zones’ in areas where
street drinking is an issue.

RESPONSE (FEB 2017)

RESPONSE (MARCH 2018)

recognise the severe impacts
that street drinking can have
on an area. We are committed
to including the option to
implement saturation zones
within our next scheduled
review of licensing policy
during 2016/17. Although the
Licensing Act 2003 doesn’t
allow full scale restrictions on
the number of new licensed
premises, it does create a
presumption against the
issuance of new licenses and
requires applicants to
demonstrate that the granting
of a licence won’t add to the
cumulative impact experienced
within that zone, so should
have a positive impact.

anecdotal evidence which suggests
that the saturation zone has had an
impact on the business models
developed by licensed premises
wishing to move into the Clapham
area, with a shift away from vertical
drinking establishments.

specified geographical area, and the effects
of associated crime and anti-social behaviour
on the environment, residents and other
businesses.

We recognise that this
recommendation could have
many positive impacts across
the borough and we are doing
all that we legally can to
support this. Our revised
Licensing Policy emphasises
the need for much greater
scrutiny around single can
alcohol sales. Whilst the law
prevents us from introducing
standard licence conditions we

There has been a sustained
improvement in the level of
regulatory activity delivered in
partnership with the Lambeth Met
Police, the joint licensing tasking
process for instance provides the
relevant enforcement/regulatory
services with an opportunity ensure
greater scrutiny of premises licence
applications. Scrutiny of new off
licence applications remains a
priority for the partnership activity –

As mentioned previously the introduction of a
cumulative impact policy does not allow for
wholesale restrictions on the number of new
licensed premises but places the onus on any
applicant for a new licence to demonstrate
that the granting of the licence applied for will
not add to the cumulative impact experienced
within the specified zone as set out within a
cumulative impact policy.
The next Licensing Policy is likely to state the
Council’s policy position on cumulative
impact policies in that it would retain any
existing schemes in effect at the time of
publication (subject to any applicable
legislative guidance) and to roll out any
further policies for the borough according to
evidence and legislative guidance.
Further information on cumulative impact
policies is set out in Appendix 2.
In line with the legislative guidance, all
licence applications should be considered on
an individual (case by case) basis.
Lambeth contributed to the Lords’ ‘Select
Committee on the Licensing Act 2003: postlegislative scrutiny’ report published in April
2017, contributing that: ‘in boroughs like ours
we have problems with street drinkers and
we find it difficult to prove that one premises
is particularly responsible, yet the activities of
street drinkers are directly linked to anti-

Page 40

3. All new off licences should
include a condition
preventing selling the
following: no single cans
of alcohol (minimum
packs of four); no beers or
ciders over 6% alcohol by
volume; no spirit
miniatures (50ml); no
cider above one litre.

RESPONSE (MARCH 2016)

RECOMMENDATION

RESPONSE (MARCH 2016)

RESPONSE (FEB 2017)

RESPONSE (MARCH 2018)

are confident that the higher
level of scrutiny around new off
licence applications,
particularly in areas where
street drinking is an issue, is
supporting this
recommendation.

licence reviews are also being
developed more frequently in order
to tackle concerns relating to both
street drinking and the underage
sale of alcohol.

social behaviour and often crime and
disorder’.
As previously mentioned we are unable to
introduce standard (‘blanket’) licensing
conditions as legislation dictates that all
applications are considered on a case by
case basis however in areas where there is
evidence of anti-social behaviour (ASB)
linked to street drinking we are able to
include appropriate conditions such as no
sales of single cans, bottles of ciders larger
than 750ml or alcohol above 6% ABV.

‘Additional conditions’ include those around
the sale of single cans and also high-strength
alcohol.
Bringing premises to review is an intensive
process across a number of teams and,
often, organisations (i.e. the Police). To
illustrate, the licence for premises ‘A’, a
premises with a former 24-hour licence, was
reviewed by Licensing Sub-Committee and a

Page 41

Joint regulatory activity continues in this area:
13 reviews of off-licences were undertaken
between 01/02/17 and 19/02/18, with a
resulting reduction of hours and additional
conditions attached in five cases; additional
conditions imposed for a further four
premises; the removal of the designated
premises supervisor (DPS) and attached
conditions for two premises; the suspension
of the licence for one premises; and one
licence revoked altogether (this case is
currently awaiting Appeal at the Magistrates’
Court).

RECOMMENDATION

RESPONSE (MARCH 2016)

RESPONSE (FEB 2017)

RESPONSE (MARCH 2018)

The Council received 19 new off licence
applications between 01/02/17 and 19/02/18,
3 of which were for online delivery
businesses. Of these applications, 18 were
granted, and 1 is to be determined at
Licensing Sub-Committee on 13/3/18. All of
these off licences linked to a physical

Page 42

condition imposed for no sales after 11pm.
This review was submitted as the premises
had been brought to the attention of
Community Safety and the Police through out
of hours enforcement visits and test
purchasing operations. Subsequent to the
review of the licence further out of hours
enforcement visits to check compliance
showed sales taking place after 11pm and a
further review was submitted to Licensing
Sub-Committee which resulted in the
revocation of the premises licence. The
premises submitted an appeal to the
Magistrates’ Court (during which time the
premises continued to trade as they are
permitted to do under the legislation). The
Court who heard the Appeal made the
decision to overturn the decision of Licensing
Sub-Committee to revoke the licence and
instead allowed the premises to continue to
operate until 11pm. A further request for a
review of the premises licence will be heard
by the Licensing Sub-Committee following
further breaches of the licence as witnessed
through enforcement visits since the date of
the Appeal. The review will again seek
revocation of the licence. Should this be
granted, under the legislation the premises
are able to submit an Appeal in respect of the
Committee’s decision.

RECOMMENDATION

RESPONSE (MARCH 2016)

RESPONSE (FEB 2017)

RESPONSE (MARCH 2018)
premises (i.e. those which are not online
delivery businesses) are required to adhere
to conditions which restrict the sale of single
cans and high-strength alcohol.
Membership of the Licensing Tasking Group
(mentioned previously) now includes Public
Health and Planning reinforcing the links with
colleagues in these areas, alongside the
Council and Police.

We see it as essential that
existing license holders are
encouraged to adopt the same
policy as new licensees and
we have taken positive action
to encourage the adoption of
single can policies by existing
Off Licences. Encouraging
change amongst existing
license holders is more
challenging and it is often the
case that change only occurs
as a result of review
proceedings brought by the
council or police. We are
exploring the feasibility of
encouraging and rewarding
compliance through a
reduction in business rates
with our legal team.

We continue to explore the feasibility
of encouraging and rewarding
compliance through a reduction in
business rates with our legal team.
This issue will be assessed as part
of the review of the existing licensing
policy.

Currently, where street drinking is identified
as an issue in an area and an existing
licensed premises is contributing to any antisocial behaviour through the off sale of
alcohol in single cans, for example, the
Authority would take action against that
premises through its established stepped
approach to enforcement. Under this
approach, at the initial stage the premises
would be invited in to meet with the Council
and the Police and a range of options
explored, including the voluntary adoption of
conditions which could include no single can
sales/ sales of high strength alcohol. Where a
review is undertaken mandatory conditions
may be imposed.
There is scope within existing legislation to
introduce a scheme to reward compliance,
however due to the reasons below the
scheme would not be viable and therefore will
not be introduced:
 Economic impact - how to mitigate for the
resulting loss in business rate income
 No resource for administering the scheme

Page 43

4. Existing licence holders
should be encouraged to
adopt the same policy
with a possible temporary
cut in business rates to
reward compliance with
the above

RECOMMENDATION

RESPONSE (MARCH 2016)

RESPONSE (FEB 2017)

RESPONSE (MARCH 2018)


We are currently exploring the
feasibility of a number of
options around a Levy and an
update will shortly be made
available.

The Council has decided not to take
forward proposals in respect of the
late night levy as there are some
concerns that the legal requirement
to introduce a borough wide levy
would have unintended
consequences particularly in relation
to well-run licensed premises. We
are exploring the possibility of
lobbying for changes to the statutory
framework which would allow levies
to be applied to localised areas to
deal with specific issues. (Kristian
Aspinall/ David McCollum).

The position remains as at February 2017.

We are developing a more
intelligence led approach that
can help us directly tackle the
issues having the greatest
impact on local communities.
The need to introduce
efficiency savings has
influenced how we deliver
inspections but we are
confident that development of
strong intelligence sharing
networks will help support our
approach.

The intelligence sharing networks
continue to be developed primarily
by the Council’s Trading Standards
unit, however resource constraints
mean that we are unable to develop
a schedule of routine inspections.

As left, resource constraints mean that the
Council’s Trading Standards (TS) team are
unable to develop a specific schedule of
routine inspections on tobacco display
restrictions. However, the team will be
checking general compliance with relevant
legislation (e.g. Tobacco Advertising and
Promotion Act 2002; Tobacco Products
Directive) when undertaking visits to relevant
premises under other TS projects (also see 7.
below).

Page 44

5. The council should
consider introducing a late
night levy with discounts
for responsible premises
(e.g. those who are
members of Business
Improvement Districts
and/or achieve the
Responsible Retailer Kite
Mark (see
Recommendation 21))

No resource for checking ongoing
compliance and taking enforcement
where non-compliance has been
identified.

TOBACCO SALES
6. Council inspectors should
check adherence to
restrictions governing the
display of tobacco
products in all large shops
and warn small shops
they must be compliant.

RECOMMENDATION

RESPONSE (MARCH 2016)

RESPONSE (FEB 2017)

RESPONSE (MARCH 2018)

7. Councillors should be
briefed on the restrictions
governing the display of
tobacco products and
other public health
measures and asked to
check on activity in their
wards.

A briefing note was developed
however the initial document
was not widely circulated as an
updated version of the
document needed to be
produced in order to ensure
ongoing compliance with the
relevant statutory framework.
The updated document is
routinely sent to retailers as
part of ongoing Trading
Standards activity. The most
recent briefing was circulated
to all ward Councillors in
March 2016.

A revised briefing note was sent to
Councillors during the latter part of
2016.

Trading Standards carry out checks re
tobacco display at relevant premises as part
of their wider work.

8. The council should

Currently the evidence for a
ban on smoking in public
outdoor places is not sufficient
to justify this proposal, and to
do so would be extremely
resource intensive (both in
terms of implementing and
enforcing). The council already
invests in smoking cessation
campaigns which have been
shown to decrease smoking
rates and these represent the
best use of limited resources in
the current financial climate.

Currently the evidence for a ban on
smoking in public outdoor places is
not sufficient to justify this proposal,
and to do so would be extremely
resource intensive (both in terms of
implementing and enforcing). The
council already invests in smoking
cessation campaigns which have
been shown to decrease smoking
rates and these represent the best
use of limited resources in the
current financial climate.

In line with a number of other boroughs the
Council’s Parks department are planning to
install signs on main play area gates asking
users not to smoke (voluntarily). These signs
are planned to be installed this summer.

This policy was quite
innovative at the time it was
formulated and was
challenged by fast food
operators. The council

No change. The potential for
evidence to support such a policy
approach has been raised in
discussions between planning policy
and public health officers in

The position remains as at February 2017.

FAST FOOD TAKEAWAYS
9. The commission supports
the proposal set out in the
Local Plan that “outside of
town centres, proposals
for hot food take-aways

Page 45

consider a ban on
smoking in the public
places it controls such as
parks and squares, in
accordance with
Recommendation 2 of the
London Health
Commission report.

A revision of Trading Standards web pages
on the Council website will be completed by
the end of March 2018 (and quarterly
thereafter) and will incorporate signposting to
the relevant legislation and guidance for
clarification around trader responsibilities
regarding tobacco display, and request for
any breaches to be reported to the team for
further investigation and enforcement as
appropriate.

RECOMMENDATION
(A5 uses) will not be
supported if proposed
within 400 metres of the
boundary of a primary or
secondary school”. Takeaway free exclusion zones
should be further
considered around leisure
centres, parks and
playgrounds.

RESPONSE (FEB 2017)

managed to negotiate its
retention through the Lambeth
Local Plan examination
primarily because of the
comprehensive evidence base
formulated by colleagues in
Lambeth & Southwark Public
Health which supported the
policy. Any further exclusion
zones would need to be
evidenced based and come
forward as part of the Lambeth
Local Plan review work
currently underway. It is
unlikely that we could be
successful in applying for
further exclusions zones for
hot food takeaways given the
evidence we relied upon
largely related to childhood
obesity. The Local Plan
process however takes
approximately 3 years to
complete and involves an
examination in front of a
government Inspector. Any
such exclusion zones (if they
survive the formulation
process) would not be in place
until 2018 at the earliest.

Lambeth. Public health have advised
that there would be very limited
evidence available to justify
extending the policy in the way
proposed. The process and
assessment of risks given in March
remain the same.

Planning have studied this
Takeaways Toolkit and have
used it to formulate and
support the take away hot food
schools policy in the recently
adopted Lambeth Local Plan.

No change.

RESPONSE (MARCH 2018)

Page 46

10. The council should adopt
the approach set out in
the Takeaways Toolkit
(CIEH/Mayor of London)
which recommends a
three-pronged approach
to addressing the health

RESPONSE (MARCH 2016)

No change regarding the Lambeth Local
Plan.
Also see ‘21’ below.

RECOMMENDATION

RESPONSE (MARCH 2016)

RESPONSE (FEB 2017)

RESPONSE (MARCH 2018)

There is no provision in
Lambeth’s Planning budget for
this research to be carried out.
If work was to be
commissioned it would have to
be done at London Councils
level.

No change.

No change.

Pay day loan shops now fall
within a ‘sui generis’ (use of its

Now that payday loan shops and
indeed betting offices have been

The Local Plan Review issues consultation
sought views on whether the Council should

impacts of fast food
takeaways:
 Local authorities should
work with takeaway
business and the food
industry to make food
healthier
 Schools should
introduce strategies
aimed at reducing the
amount of fast food
school children consume
during lunch breaks and
on their journey to and
from school

Page 47

 Regulatory and planning
measures should be
used to address the
proliferation of hot food
takeaway outlets
PAYDAY LOANS COMPANIES
11.The council, on its own or
with other authorities (e.g.
London Councils), should
carry out or commission
research to establish
whether pay-day loan
shops represent
‘unsustainable
development’ as potential
grounds for denying them
planning permission.
12. Subject to the outcomes
of research findings the

RECOMMENDATION
council should refuse
planning permission for
any new pay-day loan
shop on the basis it
represents ‘unsustainable
development’.

RESPONSE (FEB 2017)

RESPONSE (MARCH 2018)

own) use class category –
previously they had been
bracketed in the A2 use class
alongside uses such as banks
and building societies. They
were considered to be part of
the Financial and Professional
Services use classes category.
However they are, in planning
terms a use which is suitable
for location in a shopping
centre. For any planning
application to be refused there
must be sound reasons for its
rejection. Refusal on the
grounds of ‘unsustainable
development’ would not stand
up at a planning appeal unless
there was evidence to show
why this was the case.
Currently this evidence is not
available. The council’s
Lambeth Local Plan could only
refuse Pay Day loan uses if it
was considered there was an
over proliferation of them in a
shopping centre.

taken out of the A2 use class, there
is in theory scope to introduce local
plan policy to control changes of use
to these uses. The potential for such
an approach in Lambeth will be
explored as part of the ‘issues and
options’ for the Local Plan review,
although as with all areas of
planning policy any proposed new
approach will need to be justified by
evidence and deliverable (in
accordance with the ‘tests of
soundness’ against which local plans
are examined). Any policy grounds
for refusing uses of this nature would
also need to be planning related and
specific. ‘Unsustainable
development’ is not specific enough.

seek to limit the number of pay-day loan
shops that can be grouped together in one
place. The principle of this approach was
supported in the consultation. The potential to
bring forward a Local Plan policy on pay-day
loan shops is now being explored further,
including the evidence required to justify such
a policy at examination. The outcome of this
work will be reflected in the next round of
public consultation on the Local Plan Review
later in 2018.

A Money Champions
programme has been
underway since September
2014 as part of our Financial
Resilience Strategy. Money
Champions receive training
from West London Mission, a
local community sector
organisation, which covers
many of the areas suggested

There are now over 300 Money
Champions trained in the borough
and the project has been extended
until March 2017. The Council is
supporting the provider, West
London Mission, to seek external
funding to continue the project
beyond March 2017.

The council extended the contract for the
Money Champions programme by a further
year to March 2018.

Page 48

13. The council should
establish a ‘money
champion’ programme
whereby the council
trains and possibly pays
residents, particularly in
deprived areas, to
ensure that people have
access to banking and
affordable credit

RESPONSE (MARCH 2016)

The council is in the process of extending the
contract for the Money Champions
programme by a further year to March 2019.
The programme now has a greater focus on
Universal Credit, given the impact that it is
anticipated to have on local residents and the

RECOMMENDATION
facilities, budget
sensibly, know where to
go to improve their skills,
find work, reduce their
bills by finding the
cheapest suppliers,
maximise their claims of
the benefits they are
entitled to and cut out
expensive and unhealthy
habits like smoking,
excessive drinking and
gambling.

RESPONSE (MARCH 2016)
here. Money Champions
training is available to both
residents and people who work
in front-line services in the
public and community sector.
The training has received very
positive feedback from those
who have taken part.

On average each Money
Champion is having 11
conversations per month with
local people about issues
relating to money, debt,
benefits, employment and
housing. It is difficult to monitor
the exact impact that Money
Champions have had due to
the spontaneous nature of the
conversations they have with
their friends and neighbours.
We have recently extended the
contract until June 2016. As
well as the initial training,
Money Champions told us that
they would value some
ongoing training about other
specific issues (e.g. switching

RESPONSE (MARCH 2018)
potential for them to get into debt (e.g. whilst
waiting six weeks for their first UC payment).
The programme also now covers Southwark,
with Southwark Council working with us to
jointly commission the service. There are now
over 500 people trained as Money
Champions in Lambeth. The provider, West
London Mission, has also been successful in
securing funding for the project from the
NatWest Skills and Opportunities Fund.

Page 49

219 Money Champions have
been recruited and trained
since the project started. They
come from a diverse range of
backgrounds, speaking 10
different languages, and
include people from across the
borough.

RESPONSE (FEB 2017)

RECOMMENDATION

RESPONSE (MARCH 2016)

RESPONSE (FEB 2017)

RESPONSE (MARCH 2018)

In addition to the services referred to
previously, the Council also
commissions personal budgeting
support for Universal Credit
claimants. This is funded by DWP
and referrals to the budgeting
support can be made JCP work
coaches, the Council, or by other
agencies supporting Universal Credit
claimants.

The council continues to maintain a positive
relationship with London Mutual Credit Union,
the local credit union for Lambeth. Residents
are signposted to LMCU for banking and
credit facilities through the Emergency
Support Scheme and promotional activities.
The council's housing team also make
referrals for LMCU for tenants claiming
Universal Credit.

energy suppliers, introduction
of Universal Credit) so there is
also now an ongoing
programme of extra training
available to any Money
Champions who are interested
The council has a positive
relationship with the London
Mutual Credit Union, and we
are working together on a
number of projects.
LMCU offer affordable loan
options as an alternative to
payday loans. We have
included information about the
LMCU in mailouts to council
tenants, promoting their bank
accounts as well as affordable
credit.
Residents who are
unsuccessful in applying for
the council’s Emergency
Support Scheme are directly
referred to the credit union to
apply for a low-cost loan
instead. LMCU rules require
people taking out a loan to
have a current account with
them where their
salary/benefits are paid into.
This has proved a disincentive
to people taking up this offer
(despite the council paying the
credit union membership fees
for these residents).

Page 50

14.The council should work
with alternative lower cost
lenders such as the
London Credit mutual,
banks and building
societies to ensure that
they extend their services
to previously excluded
people who have felt
forced to use pay-day or
doorstep loan operators

RECOMMENDATION

RESPONSE (MARCH 2016)

Alongside the work with
LMCU, the council has also
commissioned a community
sector provider to support
residents to open a
mainstream bank account.
This is aimed at residents who
currently use Post Office Card
Accounts and therefore don’t
have access to financial
services such as direct debits
and personal loans/overdrafts.
The project started in October
2013 and has supported over

RESPONSE (MARCH 2018)

Page 51

To support residents with the
introduction of Universal
Credit, the council has worked
with LMCU on the introduction
of a “jam jar” bank account.
This means that when
someone’s Universal Credit
benefit is received into their
account, money for priority bills
is automatically moved into a
separate account leaving the
person with their monthly
disposable income. This facility
is aimed at people who are
less confident in managing the
single monthly payment of
Universal Credit, supporting
them to become financially
resilient in the medium term as
well as providing them with
access to the broader range of
financial products from LMCU.

RESPONSE (FEB 2017)

RECOMMENDATION

RESPONSE (MARCH 2016)

RESPONSE (FEB 2017)

RESPONSE (MARCH 2018)

The management of pay day
advertising (on the public highway) is
at present also being managed via
street trading related legislation as
this legislative framework also
governs the display and offer of
goods and services. Council officers
are able to insist that this activity is
licensed via powers outlined within
part III of the London Local
Authorities Act 1990 (as amended).

The Financial Conduct Authority (FCA) has
taken over regulation of the consumer credit
industry from the Office of Fair Trading and
local Trading Standards Departments. The
FCA regulates financial firms providing
services to consumers and maintains their
integrity, including those of pay day loan
companies.

800 people to open bank
accounts, with a target of
1,000 to be opened by June
2016. The main barriers to
people opening accounts have
related to ID requirements,
which the provider has been
able to work through with local
banks, and residents’
perceptions that they would be
refused a bank account due to
poor credit ratings (which is
not the case).
We are developing a more
intelligence led approach that
can help us directly tackle the
issues having the greatest
impact on local communities.
The need to introduce
efficiency savings has
influenced how we deliver
inspections but we are
confident that development of
strong intelligence sharing
networks will help support our
approach. We are committed
to using this intelligence to
prosecute any pay day loan
shop who breaches the law.

One such initiative that the FCA took was to
introduce a price cap on ‘high-cost short term
credit’ loans to protect consumers from
excessive administrative and interest
charges.
Trading Standards Officers’ duties across the
UK in relation to pay-day loan shops are now
focused on intelligence based activities.
In relation to loan sharks and illegal money
lending, all intelligence is forwarded to the
National Illegal Money Lending Team (IMLT)
who investigate all such matters and provide
support to vulnerable victims.

Page 52

15. Trading Standards should
take a rigorous approach
to ensuring existing payday loan shops in the
borough are adhering to
all laws, rules and
regulations in regard to
the welfare of customers.

RECOMMENDATION

RESPONSE (MARCH 2016)

RESPONSE (FEB 2017)

RESPONSE (MARCH 2018)
Lambeth Trading Standards will continue to
share information and work in partnership
with the IMLT and the FCA to protect the
welfare of our consumers.

In May 2013 we wrote to a
local pay day lender warning
against any further distribution
of literature advertising their
services as a potential breach
of the London Local Authorities
Act 1990. We are currently
checking with our legal team if
a specific focus on Pay Day
Lenders could be subject to
legal challenge. We also need
to be aware of the potential
impacts that any broader ban
on leafleting may have on
SMEs and entrepreneurial
activity.

There remains some concern that
the use of the available powers
outlined within the Environmental
Protection Act 1990 may have an
adverse impact on community
organisations, charities, third sector
organisations and in some cases
small and medium sized businesses.
The management of pay day
advertising (on the public highway)
continues to be managed via street
trading related legislation as this
legislative framework also governs
the display and offer of goods and
services.

The position remains as at February 2017.

17. All the council’s powers
should be used to
ensure that no illegal
advertising for these
businesses is taking
place in terms of
advertising boards,
balloons etc. The council
now blocks access to
payday loan companies
on council computer
terminals and should not
allow adverts for their
product on our
billboards. Further the

In respect of the content of
adverts this is not something
that falls under planning
control – so we can't take
action against an advert
because it is for a betting shop
rather than a fitness club for
instance.

No change.

No change.

In Planning terms the display
of advertisements without
express (advertisement
consent) or deemed (permitted
under the legislation) consent
is illegal. If adverts are

Page 53

16. The Environmental
Protection Act 1990 (as
amended by the Clean
Neighbourhoods &
Environment Act 2005)
allows the council to
forbid leafleting on the
public highway (unless
for religious or political
purposes). All pay-day
lenders should be
written to warning them
not to distribute leaflets.

RECOMMENDATION
council should ask other
advertisers to introduce
a voluntary ban on pay
day loan company
adverts

RESPONSE (MARCH 2016)

RESPONSE (FEB 2017)

RESPONSE (MARCH 2018)

The Government consultation asking
for evidence regarding maximum
stakes and prizes of gaming
machines closed on 6th December
2016 and they are currently
analysing results. We will continue to
monitor this, and the action taken by
other boroughs in order to determine
our approach.

Lambeth has over 50 betting shops and over
200 FOBTs in the borough.

Page 54

displayed illegally the Planning
Enforcement Team can try and
negotiate their removal or if
considered acceptable in
planning terms, suggest they
apply for advertisement
consent to retain them.
Ultimately if that fails, Planning
can either prosecute those
responsible or issue ‘advert
removal’ notices (under
section 224/5 of the T&CPA).
There is no resource for the
council to proactively seek out
such illegal advertising, if
indeed it exists, but if cases
were referred to us the
Planning Enforcement Team
could investigate in the normal
way.
http://planningguidance.comm
unities.gov.uk/blog/guidance/a
dvertisments/enforcementagainst-specific-unauthorisedadvertisements/

BETTING SHOPS
18.The council should
examine drafting a by-law
which will set a maximum
Fixed Odds Betting
Terminal (FOBT) stake of
£2.

In April 2015 the Gaming
Machine (Circumstances of
Use) (Amendment)
Regulations 2015 came into
force. The Regulations require
those wanting to stake over
£50 on a B2 machine to load
cash via staff interaction or to
use account based play. The
aim is to encourage greater

Along with the Local Government
Association, campaign groups and 93 other
local authorities, Lambeth council has lobbied
for a reduction in the maximum stake to £2
which would considerably slow down losses
for individuals whilst enabling the industry to
still generate considerable profits.

RECOMMENDATION

RESPONSE (MARCH 2016)

RESPONSE (FEB 2017)

player control and more
conscious decision making.
The Government has said that
it will consider an evaluation of
the Regulations, published in
January 2016, before deciding
on any further action on B2s.
We will continue to monitor
this, and the action taken by
other boroughs in order to
determine our approach.
Lambeth is currently looking at
preparing Article 4 directions
for a number of sites and
areas across the borough.
Firstly, as the Central Activities
Zone (CAZ) will no longer be
exempt from the B1a (offices)
to C3 (residential) permitted
development rights after 2019
the council will be preparing an
Article 4 direction to continue
to protect this area.
Secondly, the council is
looking at protecting some of
its Key Industrial Business
Areas (KIBAs), as well as key
town centres which provide
significant employment
floorspace - such as Brixton
and Clapham.
A strong evidence base is a
key factor when considering
the preparation of Article 4

Lambeth has also provided a full response to
the Department for Digital, Culture, Media
and Sport consultation on proposals for
changes to Gaming Machines and Social
Responsibility Measures in January 2018.
The Culture Secretary announced in January
2018 that the maximum stake is likely to be
reduced to £2.

There is now no permitted
development right that allows
change of use to a payday loan shop
or betting shop, as they are now ‘sui
generis’ uses. There is also no
permitted development right that
allows automatic change of use to a
hot food take-away. An Article 4
direction is therefore not an
appropriate mechanism to use to
control the proliferation of these
uses. Local Plan policy should be
used instead. See also the answer
to 12 above.

No change.

Page 55

19. The council should
investigate the
introduction of Article 4
Direction to restrict
permitted development
and provide additional
powers of planning
control which will
empower local people to
have more control over
change of use class in
their local area (An
Article 4 Direction is a
special planning
regulation adopted by a
Local Planning Authority
to provide additional
powers of planning
control in a particular
location).

RESPONSE (MARCH 2018)

RECOMMENDATION

RESPONSE (MARCH 2016)

RESPONSE (FEB 2017)

RESPONSE (MARCH 2018)

See the response to 12 above in
addition to the response given in
March.

The Local Plan Review issues consultation
sought views on whether the Council should
seek to limit the number of betting shops that
can be grouped together in one place. The
principle of this approach was supported in
the consultation. The potential to bring
forward a Local Plan policy on betting shops
is now being explored further, including the
evidence required to justify such a policy at

Page 56

directions and this is what the
council is currently working
on. There is also a question
of tactics and getting the
balance right. The SOS has
final say on whether these
Article 4’s are approved or not
and experience from other
boroughs to date has shown
that a blanket ‘whole borough’
approach is not acceptable to
the government and that the
council is more likely to
succeed if it selects certain key
parts of its borough for
protection. A case of the
council backing its best bets.
There are significant cost
implications with Article 4
Directions - in terms of staff
resources when progressing
Article 4 Directions through to
approval and with the sizeable
consultation costs. There is
also a need to gather relevant
evidence in order to support
the Article 4.
20.Economic modelling by
Landman Economics
suggests that each betting
shop in Lambeth with
FOBTs creates a net loss
of 2.5 jobs; this should be
used as grounds
(unsustainable
development) to block

By government definition a
betting shop is in principle an
appropriate use in a shopping
centre. It becomes
unacceptable if there is a
proliferation of them in a
shopping centre leading to a
negative impact on the vitality
and viability of a town centre,

RECOMMENDATION
future planning
applications

RESPONSE (MARCH 2016)

RESPONSE (FEB 2017)

examination. The outcome of this work will
be reflected in the next round of public
consultation on the Local Plan Review later in
2018.

LAMBETH RESPONSIBLE RETAILER “DO THE RIGHT THING” KITEMARK
21. A Lambeth ‘responsible
retailer’ kite mark should
be developed (perhaps
graded bronze, silver,
gold) to indicate levels of
compliance by a retailer
in supporting people to
make healthier choices
through the products
they sell. This could
apply for example to:
Fast Food Outlets –
meeting healthy eating
guidelines e.g. quality of
cooking oils and other
products, choice of
healthy options etc.

Current resource levels do not
allow for the development,
implementation and monitoring
of a Lambeth specific
responsible retailer kite mark.
Current regulatory teams are
focussed on intelligence led
inspections to ensure statutory
compliance by retailers in the
borough. Within the current
financial envelope for services
this remains the most effective
way to ensure that retailers are
operating within the law and
that criminal breaches are
tackled.

Current resource levels do not allow
for the development, implementation
and monitoring of a Lambeth specific
responsible retailer kite mark.
Current regulatory teams are
focussed on intelligence led
inspections to ensure statutory
compliance by retailers in the
borough. Within the current financial
envelope for services this remains
the most effective way to ensure that
retailers are operating within the law
and that criminal breaches are
tackled.

Current resource levels do not allow for the
development, implementation and monitoring
of a Lambeth specific responsible retailer kite
mark, however Lambeth’s Food, Health and
Safety team is one of several London
Boroughs who have signed up to the Londonwide project ‘Healthier Catering
Commitments (HCC)’ which started in 2012.
This is a voluntary scheme that businesses
can sign up to in order to provide healthier
options to customers, promoted through
stickers which are awarded to businesses
who meet the relevant criteria around oil,
sugar and salts There are currently eight
premises in the borough (from an original 21
at the start of the scheme) who have the
HCC award out of the 700-800 premises

Page 57

discouraging other investors
from coming to the centre and
potentially affecting the quality
of life of those living nearby
(because of noise, litter, traffic
generation and general
disturbance caused by people
congregating outside such
facilities). However loss of jobs
as a reason for refusal would
be difficult to uphold – there is
currently nothing in the
council’s planning policies (nor
in national and regional
planning guidance) which
suggests that this could be
used to refuse an application.

RESPONSE (MARCH 2018)

RECOMMENDATION
Off Licences – voluntary
adoption of the
conditions mentioned in
Recommendation 3
Payday Loan/Financial
companies - agreeing
voluntary cap on interest
rate limit

RESPONSE (MARCH 2016)

RESPONSE (FEB 2017)

RESPONSE (MARCH 2018)
currently in operation. All premises are
informed of the scheme during their
programmed inspection (these take place
either on a 6/12/18 month basis), however
the rate of take up has been low. Due to
resource constraints, the FHS team’s focus is
on carrying out the statutory inspection
programme.

Retailers paying the
minimum wage

Page 58

Page 59

Healthier High Streets Scrutiny Commission Report
Appendix 2: Licensing process overview and brief summary of the Cumulative Impact
policy in Clapham
1.

A premises licence is required for any premises offering licensable activities – i.e. the
retail sale of alcohol, the supply of alcohol in clubs, the provision of late night
refreshment, and the provision of ‘regulated entertainment’, which is defined as a
performance of a play, an exhibition of a film, an indoor sporting event, boxing or
wrestling entertainment (both indoors and outdoors), a performance of live music,
any playing of recorded music, or a performance of dance.

2.

Prospective premises licence holders apply to the Council, which acts as the
Licensing Authority under the Licensing Act 2003, for a premises licence with their
details, details of the designated premises supervisor (an individual who holds a valid
personal licence and is named on a premises licence which authorises the sale by
retail of alcohol), a detailed plan of the premises and an operating schedule (e.g.
when alcohol will be sold), and the applicable fee.
It is the responsibility of the applicant to ensure that the ‘application notice’ is
displayed at or on the premises for 28 days from the day after it was submitted.
During this consultation anyone can make a written representation in favour of or
against the application based on the four licensing objectives which are:
(i)
(ii)
(iii)
(iv)

the prevention of crime and disorder,
public safety,
prevention of public nuisance, and
the protection of children from harm

These four licensing objectives must be taken into account when the Licensing
Authority carries out its functions.
Where the hours requested in an application fall outside of the Council’s Licensing
Policy hours the application will be objected to by the Licensing team as a matter of
course.
Any representations made against an application mean that the application will be
referred to the Licensing Sub-Committee for a decision. The Committee are also able
to grant licences subject to any conditions they wish to impose which must be
observed.
Should a premises licence be granted it is valid until it is either surrendered or lapses
in accordance with the Act.
3.

The Licensing Act 2003 is regularly supplemented by Guidance under s182 of the
Act which reflects any updates or changes in wider legislation. Although not
specifically referred to in the original Act, the Guidance provides for the
establishment of special areas of cumulative impact.

4.

In an area where the number, type or density of premises selling alcohol or providing
late night refreshment is already high, nuisance and disorder may be occurring or
have begun to arise not just outside the premises but as a consequence of those
premises, e.g. some distance away. This may be as a result of large numbers of

Page 60

drinkers being concentrated in a specific area, such as when leaving premises,
and/or queuing at fast food outlets or for public transport.

5.

Large concentrations of people may also increase the opportunity for and incidence
of other criminal activities such as drug dealing, theft and robbery. Other issues may
also occur such as street urination, littering, traffic and public nuisance caused by
concentrations of people who cannot be effectively dispersed quickly. 1

6.

Where a Licensing Authority receives evidence that a high density of licensed
premises in one area is having a detrimental effect on one or more of the licensing
objectives, they may consult on introducing a cumulative impact policy, identifying a
specific ‘cumulative impact zone’ or ‘saturation zone’. Cumulative impact policies
(CIP) may relate to premises licensed to carry on any licensable activity, including
the sale of alcohol for consumption on or off the premises, and the provision of late
night refreshment. The policy might not apply only to bars, nightclubs and other
drinking venues but also, for example, to off-licences. It can also apply in respect of
late night fast food outlets which are not licensed to sell alcohol.

7.

If introduced, this means that any applications for new premises licences or for
variations (e.g. expansion of hours) within the designated zone which receive one or
more relevant representations will presume to be refused unless the applicant can
demonstrate that the premises (or any variation to the licence at an existing
premises) will not add to the existing problems within the area. It is important to note
that the Council itself can decide to make a representation, without waiting for any
other person to do so. According to 8.40 of the current Guidance: ‘applicants are
also expected to demonstrate an understanding of how the policy impacts on
their application; any measures they will take to mitigate the impact; and why they
consider the application should be an exception to the policy.’

8.

A Cumulative Impact policy for Clapham was introduced on 10th November 2011,
originally triggered by an initial request from the Metropolitan Police. The applicable
geographical area is set out on the next page.

8.1.

According to the original report in 2011 agreed at Full Council, further to the MPS
request, ‘the application for the special saturation policy was prompted by an analysis
of crime statistics which revealed that there had been an increase of 33% in the level
of crime in Clapham High Street when the 12 month period (01.05.2011 30.04.2011) was compared to the previous period. 57.3% of offences were related to
licensed premises, with an offence occurring inside or in close proximity to the venue.
66% of offences on Saturdays and 73.7% on Sundays were related to licensed
premises. 87% of offences on Saturday and Sunday occurred in the period between
2000 and 0600 hours.’

1

See s182 Secretary of State Guidance – Licensing Act 2003

Page 61

Fig 1: Clapham Cumulative Impact – map of area

8.2.

According to data produced for the period 01/01/2013-31/12/2017 (while the
Cumulative Impact policy has been in operation in Clapham), the overall 5 year trend
within the ‘saturation zone’ is down, with a low period between August 2016 and
September 2017 – the monthly recorded crime average during this time period was
44, significantly lower than the 5 year average.
Violent crime fluctuated over the 5 year period within the Cumulative Impact Policy
zone in Clapham. 2016 recorded the most violence crime (n=171). In 2017 there
were 138 violent crimes recorded within the area. Very recent months show that the
crime volumes (for violent crime) are on the increase, this has been recognised
during the Council’s Licensing Tasking process and considered for action.
60% of crimes during the 5 year period are acquisitive in nature (n = 2,012), however
acquisitive crime has reduced every year for the past 5 years during this period.

8.3.

Prior to implementation, the application to introduce the Cumulative Impact policy for
Clapham was subject to public consultation with 90% of respondents in favour, with
some comments made about possible extension to cover other premises. 70
responses were received, with 7 opposing it. Those in favour tended to express the
view that a saturation point had been reached and that there should not be further
expansion of the night time economy, based on the volume of people using the
current facilities, noise and ASB.

8.4.

The views of those opposing the introduction of the ‘saturation zone’ included
concerns about displacement of activities to adjacent areas and that there was no
problem to be addressed.

Page 62

8.5.

Further to its implementation, an evaluation of the Clapham Cumulative Impact Zone
was undertaken in 2015 with reference to evidence including Police statistics on
crime and anti-social behaviour and reports of ASB to the Council. The zone was
maintained as a result and continues to be in place.

8.6.

Since the implementation of the Cumulative Impact policy in Clapham in November
2011, 636 applications for new premises licences (including 41 time-limited) were
received by the Council across the borough, 0.03% (19) of which were in respect of
premises within the Clapham cumulative impact policy area.
Of these applications, 89% (566) applications for new premises licences were
granted across the borough and 89% (17) of those received for premises within the
cumulative impact policy area were granted.

8.7.

There are many complex factors involved in the management of the night-time
economy and the roll-out of the Clapham Cumulative Impact policy has been
supplemented by wider measures including the ongoing Police-led Operation
Equinox which includes extra uniformed patrols to target pubs and clubs and fast
food restaurants, carry out licensing inspections, and supporting operations to track
down outstanding offenders who are wanted for violent offences.

Page 63

Agenda Item 6

Overview & Scrutiny Committee 22 March 2018
Report title: 2017-18 Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme
Wards: All
Portfolio: Deputy Leader of the Council (Finance and Resources): Councillor Imogen Walker
Report Authorised by: Jackie Belton: Strategic Director for Corporate Resources
Contact for enquiries: Gary O’Key, Lead Scrutiny Officer, Corporate Resources; 020 7926 2183;
gokey@lambeth.gov.uk

Report summary
This report sets out the committee’s draft work programme, provides an update on and record of actions
or recommendations arising from previous meetings and provides councillors with information relevant to
the management of the committee.
Finance summary
There are no additional capital or revenue implications arising as a direct result of this report. The work
programme will be undertaken within the existing budget provision for Scrutiny within the Corporate
Resources Directorate.
Recommendations
1.

That the work programme as drafted and the status of actions be noted (Appendix 1).

Page 64
1.
1.1

Context
The Overview and Scrutiny Committee (OSC) is responsible for overseeing and scrutinising the
whole range of the Authority’s functions and responsibilities, as well as other public service providers’
work and its impact on the local community. The committee’s remit extends to all matters which
impact on the economic, social and environmental wellbeing of those who live, work, study or use
services in the borough.

1.2

OSC also exercises the council’s statutory scrutiny functions in relation to health, and crime and
disorder. The committee has responsibility for the review and scrutiny of matters relating to the
planning, provision and operation of health and related services in Lambeth (and any substantial
variation thereof) in accordance with the Health and Social Care Act 2012 and relevant regulations.
The committee is also the borough’s designated ‘Crime and Disorder Scrutiny Committee’ in
accordance with the Police and Justice Act 2006 and has responsibility for scrutinising the work of
the Safer Lambeth Partnership.

1.3

At the AGM on 4 June 2014, Council agreed that Lambeth’s scrutiny arrangements be amended to
better reflect the changes to the structure of the council and Lambeth’s move to a cooperative
commissioning council. The basis of the model is that alongside a single Overview and Scrutiny
Committee there will be a more enhanced use of task and finish groups (scrutiny commissions)
which will enable more backbench councillors to pursue areas of interest and be more directly
involved in policy development.

1.4

At the 19 April 2017 AGM, Council approved the establishment of a Children’s Services Scrutiny
Sub-Committee in addition to OSC. The first meeting was held on 14 June 2017 and the subcommittee is determining its work programme going forward.

2.
2.1

Proposal and Reasons
The Overview and Scrutiny Committee is invited to consider its work programme at each meeting.
Although some flexibility needs to be retained to enable items to be added at relatively short notice,
planning the committee’s work programme assists in the commissioning of reports and helps to
ensure that planned work is considered in a timely manner.

2.2

The committee’s draft work programme and action monitoring table is attached at Appendix 1. This
is updated following completion of any actions or recommendations arising or timetabling of new
items. Only those actions which are amber or red rated from the 2016/17 round of meetings are
included. The work programme should be monitored at each meeting to ensure that previous actions
and requests have been completed in full.

2.3

Overview and Scrutiny is continuing the same approach to its meetings in 2017/18 as in the previous
municipal year, whereby each meeting will have a lead item but a portion of each meeting will also
be retained to take updates on themes of ongoing or particular interest or concern in order to ensure
a flexible approach. Indicative lead items are outlined in Appendix 1.

2.4

2.5

Scrutiny Commissions
All proposals for scrutiny commissions should be submitted to the Scrutiny Team and will be
considered by the OSC Chair and Vice Chairs in the first instance. Councillors submitting a proposal
for a commission are asked to provide outline information using the commission scoping template.
Commissions will only be progressed when adequate resource has become available in the Scrutiny
Team.
A Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee (JOSC) is established across the six south east London
boroughs to scrutinise the work and consider proposals arising from the NHS SEL programme ‘Our

Page 65
Healthier South East London’ (OHSEL). OHSEL is the NHS Sustainability and Transformation Plan
(STP) for south east London aiming to improve the health of people in the region, reduce health
inequalities and deliver a healthcare system which is clinically and financially sustainable. Eight
formal meetings of the JOSC have been held so far, most recently on 12 March 2018, and proposed
models of care for the programme’s priorities have been subject to discussion with the JOSC. The
proposal to centralise Planned Orthopaedic Care on two sites (and which was expected to be subject
to formal public consultation in 2017) was withdrawn in July whilst a three site option is tested over
the next 12-18 months on whether this can deliver the required quality and efficiency benefits.
2.6

A JOSC to consider changes to ‘Place of Safety’ [PoS] arrangements for individuals detained under
Section 136 of the Mental Health Act was established in 2016 across four boroughs – Lambeth,
Southwark, Lewisham and Croydon. The committee met twice to review proposals by the South
London and Maudsley NHS Foundation Trust [SLaM] for a single centralised PoS based at the
Maudsley Hospital. The new PoS opened in January 2017. At its second meeting the committee had
agreed to reconvene in six months; however an evaluation report on the operation of the new service
model over its first seven months and provided in November 2017 has given sufficient assurance to
the committee and it has been agreed that the JOSC be considered concluded.

2.7

A second JOSC was established across the same four boroughs to consider proposed changes to
the Mental Health Older Adult inpatient bed provision. The JOSC, chaired by Cllr Jacqui Dyer, met
on 6 November 2017 and agreed in principle SLaM proposals to designate separate inpatient wards
for patients with functional (psychotic, mood and anxiety disorders) and organic (dementia) mental
health needs and accordingly a reconfiguration of three wards across the four boroughs. The JOSC
sought a range of assurances on arrangements for patients and carers and requested that
commissioners carry out an evaluation of the changes one year after they have been implemented.
The JOSC will meet again at that stage.

2.8

The Jobs For All Commission was established to follow up on issues initially scrutinised at OSC and
how the council maximises local employment through regeneration and investment opportunities;
the commission’s work also dovetails with OSC’s general ongoing interest in how the council is using,
or might use, its procurement activities and capacity to realise benefits from contracts (and supply
chains) and support delivery on objectives around employment, and the inter-linked discussions on
social value. The commission presented its interim report and findings to the Overview & Scrutiny
Committee on 19 October 2017, and has now concluded its work. Arrangements are now being
made to present its report and recommendations to Cabinet.

2.9

The Accessibility of Council Digital Services Commission was established in 2016 with the aim of
ensuring that the council’s move towards providing more and more services online is matched by
improvements in digital accessibility in order that residents with specific access needs – such as
those with sensory impairments or learning disabilities – are properly catered for. The commission
presented its interim report and findings to the Overview & Scrutiny Committee on 19 October 2017
and has now finalised its recommendations in light of Members’ comments at that meeting. The
commission will be reporting to Cabinet in March 2018.

2.10 The Burst Water Mains Commission, set up in February 2017, is Lambeth’s contribution to a Londonwide scrutiny approach exploring the causes and impacts of burst water mains in the capital. This
followed a spate of eight major bursts in late 2016, including two at Leigham Vale in Streatham. A
set of joint recommendations were agreed by OSC at its meeting on 19 October 2017 and Members
have been kept up to date with developments on an ongoing basis in order that they can keep the
issues under review and input further as and when appropriate.

Page 66
2.11 In response to a number of leaks in the Streatham area following extreme weather in early March
2018, leaving many local residents without water, the committee has decided to add an urgent item
to the agenda of this (22 March 2018) meeting to examine the causes and effects of, and response
to, the bursts. It is also planned that an update on the joint recommendations as referred to in
paragraph 2.10 above will be sought in conjunction with this. More detail is provided via a separate
agenda report.
2.12 The table included in Appendix 1 summarises the status of all current commissions.
OSC Work Programme
2.13 In considering its future work programme and in agreeing commissions the committee may wish to
take into account the Council’s priorities as outlined in Future Lambeth: Our Borough Plan 20162021, which was approved by Cabinet on 19 September 2016. This is the Council and partners’
vision for the borough over the next five years and sets out three strategic priorities that all partners
will work towards in order to make Lambeth a stronger, fairer and more prosperous borough:
Inclusive Growth; Reducing Inequality; and Strong and Sustainable Neighbourhoods.
2.14 The Forward Plan lists all key decisions that the Council (including the Health and Wellbeing Board)
will take over the coming months. A key decision is defined as an executive decision which will:
(1) Require an amendment to the Community Plan Outcomes Framework or require a
recommendation to Council to amend the Budget and Policy Framework; and/or
(2) Result in the local authority incurring expenditure, raising income or making savings in excess of
£500,000; and/or
(3) Have a significant impact on:
(a) communities living or working in an area comprising two or more wards in Lambeth; or
(b) wellbeing of the community or the quality of service provided to a significant number of people
living or working in an area; or
(c) communities of interest
2.15 The plan is therefore a useful tool for identifying forthcoming decisions where the committee could
add value. The Forward Plan can be found at:
https://moderngov.lambeth.gov.uk/mgListPlanItems.aspx?PlanId=702&RP=137
3.
3.1

Finance
There are no additional capital or revenue implications arising as a direct result of this report. The
work programme will be undertaken within the existing budget provision for Scrutiny within the
Corporate Resources Directorate.

4.
4.1

Legal and Democracy
There are no legal implications, but advice on specific work programme items may be provided in
the future.

4.2

There are no further democratic implications arising from this report.

5.
5.1

Consultation and co-production
All members of the council are entitled to suggest items for scrutiny work programmes in accordance
with the council’s scrutiny procedure rules (Constitution Part 3, Section 6). Suggestions are also
invited specifically from scrutiny members as part of their community leadership role and from
members of the public. The council’s website includes a form for the submission of suggestions and
for public notice questions.

Page 67
6.
6.1

Risk management
None.

7.
7.1

Equalities impact assessment
An equalities impact assessment of the work programme has not been undertaken. Reports
commissioned by the committee will be expected to address any equalities issues. Any
recommendations arising from commissions will have equalities implications considered at the
drafting stage.

8.
8.1

Community safety
None.

9.
9.1

Organisational implications
None.

10. Timetable for implementation
10.1 See Appendix 1.
Audit Trail
Consultation
Name/Position

Lambeth
directorate/
department or partner
Councillor Ed Davie
Chair, Overview & Scrutiny
Committee
Alison McKane, Director of On behalf of Strategic Director,
Legal Services & HR
Corporate Resources
Nisar Visram, Assistant
Corporate Resources
Director Corporate
Finance
Andrew Pavlou, Legal Corporate Resources
Services
Jacqueline
Pennycook, Corporate Resources
Democratic Services

Date Sent

Date
Received

Comments
in para:

07.03.18
07.03.18

12.03.18

07.03.18

12.03.18

07.03.18

07.03.18

3.1
and
Finance
Summary
4.1

07.03.18

12.03.18

4.2

Report History
Original discussion with Cabinet Member
N/A
Report deadline
09.03.18
Date final report sent
13.03.18
Part II Exempt from Disclosure/confidential No
accompanying report?
Key decision report
No
Date first appeared on forward plan
N/A
Key decision reasons
N/A
Background information
Future Lambeth: Our Borough Plan 2016-2021
Forward Plan of Key Decisions
Appendices

Appendix 1 – OSC Work Programme 2017/18

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 69
Appendix 1

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
2017-18 WORK PROGRAMME
Date

Meeting
type

Items/Topics

3 May 2017

Special

Call In: (1) Key Guarantees to Residents Affected by Estate
Regeneration (2) Central Hill
Lead item: Crime and Disorder

18 May 2017

Scheduled



Safer Lambeth Partnership – Review of Safer Lambeth
Activity 2016/17 and Emerging Strategic Priorities



Youth Offending Service: Progress Report 2016/17

Lead item: Council Strategy

13 July 2017

Scheduled



Budget Update / July Finance Review



Organisational Redesign Update



Future Lambeth: Our Borough Plan 2016-21



Corporate Performance 2016/17

Lead item: Equalities

19 October 2017

Scheduled



Lambeth Equality Commission



Jobs For All Scrutiny Commission



Accessibility of Council Digital Services Scrutiny
Commission



Borough Plan Implementation / Corporate Performance

Lead item: Health / Transport

7 December 2017

Scheduled



Living Well Network Alliance Contract



Lambeth Long Term Transport Strategy



Equality Streets Scrutiny Commission Action Plan
Update



Borough Plan Implementation / Corporate Performance

Lead item: Budget
1 February 2018

Scheduled



Financial Planning Report: Revenue and Capital
Budget 2018/19 to 2020/21



Housing Fire Safety Update

Lead item: Outstanding work programme items
22 March 2018

KEY:
G
A
R

Scheduled



Water Mains



Organisational Redesign Update



Healthier High Streets Scrutiny Commission Action
Plan Update

Action completed
Action in progress or deadline for completion not reached
Action not complete

Page 70
Appendix 1
Scrutiny Commissions
(More information on current commissions is contained in the OSC work programme report)

Title/Proposal

Status

Co-Chairs/Lead Member(s)

Resident Involvement
in Housing

Complete. Action plan approved by
Cabinet on 6 June 2016; first update
reported to OSC on 23 March 2017;
second update provisionally scheduled for
summer 2018.

Cllr Jacqui Dyer &
Cllr Mary Atkins

Equality Streets:
Parking in a Liveable
Lambeth

Complete. Final report approved by OSC
on 28 February 2017 and reported to
Cabinet on 24 April 2017. First action plan
update received on 7 December 2017;
second update provisionally Dec 2018.

Cllr Nigel Haselden &
Cllr Robert Hill

Improving Children
Services

Concluded. Work to be taken forward via
Children’s Scrutiny Sub-Committee.

Cllr Ed Davie

Joint Health Overview
& Scrutiny Committee
‘Our Healthier South
East London’

In progress.

Cllr Jacqui Dyer &
Cllr Robert Hill

Joint Health Overview
& Scrutiny Committee
‘Place of Safety’

Concluded.

Cllr Jacqui Dyer &
Cllr Robert Hill

Joint Health Overview
& Scrutiny Committee
‘Older Adults Mental
Health’

In progress.

Cllr Jacqui Dyer &
Cllr Robert Hill

Jobs For All

Investigations concluded. Final report
expected to be presented to Cabinet in
2018.

Cllr Matt Parr

Accessibility of Council
Digital Services

In progress. Final report expected to be
presented to Cabinet in March 2018.

Cllr Marsha de Cordova &
Cllr Christopher Wellbelove

Burst Water Mains

Meeting held April 2017; further follow up
via item on this (22/3/18) agenda.

Cllr Andy Wilson &
Cllr Jack Holborn

KEY:
G
A
R

Action completed
Action in progress or deadline for completion not reached
Action not complete

28 February 2017
PRE MEETING PLANNING
Lead
Officer/Author

Report Title & Key
Points

POST MEETING ACTIONS
Outcome & Actions Arising

Lead

Status

Deadline

Status

Meeting Theme: Health and Social Care
NHS Lambeth CCG Report on South East London Sustainability and Transformation Plan: Recommendations

Response
received
from
OHSEL
4/17; noted
by OSC
13/7/17

For future
follow up
(- to be
agreed)

The STP
is also
subject to
ongoing
scrutiny
via the
OHSEL
JOSC

A

Page 71

The Committee
1. Agrees with the general direction of travel around integration, the need to make changes to deliver high quality and consistent
care and to concentrate specialisms to achieve best outcomes for patients, albeit in the context that the STP sets an overtly
ambitious financial savings target and timescale for delivery.
2. Records the reservations expressed about achieving the financial savings set out in the Plan. The committee recommends that if
there are underlying concerns that the financial plans that underpin the STP may not be realised then there needs to be a clear
contingency plan established.
3. Does not consider that thus far in the development of the STP there has been sufficient engagement with Public Health, with the
Council or with the public. It is noted that this is now happening but there is a need for on-going engagement at each respective
level.
4. Whilst recognising that the STP is reflective of its origins as an NHS document, considers that this now requires a jointly owned
process with local government and a jointly owned vision and transformation plan. Additionally there is a need for a coherent
local government response to the SEL STP and alignment across the six south east London local authorities. Accordingly the six
councils need to be clear on how they will work together on this matter. The committee would welcome seeing a framework plan
for how the six councils will establish an inclusive approach to the STP and how local government representation will be
strengthened in the STP governance arrangements.
5. Notes that the STP records the importance of social care but the committee sees (and has heard) little evidence of engagement
with social care in its development. It is critical to bring on board both social care and public health in shaping future plans.
6. Recommends that there is a need for a stronger and ongoing focus on addressing health inequalities across south east London.
This is largely absent from consideration in the STP and represents a lost opportunity to think strategically and consider how the
STP might be utilised to address some of the key determinants of health and health inequalities such as employment.
7. There needs to be assurance that the most effective value is being gained from procurement activities. Health institutions in
south east London collectively represent a significant purchasing power so there are opportunities of scale by taking a cohesive
approach to procurement for e.g. equipment etc. . But there should also be a strand of work linking procurement and social value.
Our larger health institutions act as local anchors for delivering wider public health benefits including through local jobs and
employment opportunities and the NHS should use the levers at its disposal, and work collaboratively with partners, to seek to
get the most benefit from the resources available.

8. Recommends the need for a robust evaluation mechanism to sit alongside the STP and a clear understanding of what the Plan
means for individuals and for the diverse communities of south east London. Areas of Lambeth and its populations have high
levels of deprivation and health inequalities and the committee would wish to be assured that the scale, pace and complexity of
change mean that Lambeth residents and its local communities do not lose out to more prosperous neighbours.
9. Would welcome receiving more information on the workforce issues arising from the STP and in particular a breakdown on the
implications of work force efficiencies/job reductions.
10. Thanks the Chair of Lambeth Keep Our NHS Public and the Vice Chair of Lambeth Patient Participation Group Network for their
contribution to the debate and requests Lambeth CCG to respond to any outstanding issues from the respective submissions.
11. Welcomes and notes the joint response to Our Healthier South East London (OHSEL) Sustainability and Transformation Plan
submitted by the six South East London Healthwatch and would welcome receiving the response reply.
12. Thanks Cllr Dyer and Cllr Hill for their on-going involvement in Our Healthier South East London Joint Overview and Scrutiny
Committee [OHSEL JOSC] and commends the open dialogue across boroughs with different perspectives and balance of
interest the JOSC membership are seeking to represent and the transparent process underway to scrutinise the SEL STP.
13. Recommend that an update on this matter be scheduled for approximately six months, however in view of the committee’s
existing work programme it may be that this take place outside the formal meeting structure.

Healthier High Streets Action Plan: 1st
Update

Adult Health and Care Integration

Adult Social Care, Pubic Health and
Supporting People Savings Proposals

Recommendations being incorporated into new Licensing Policy –
Committee welcome seeing/feeding into the Licensing Review.
Points raised by committee
- opportunities for social value through the integration framework;
- future of teams and need for specialisms (e.g. learning disabilities)
- links with Housing, and public health role of housing in wellbeing:
noted that few STPs address housing. Potential through Estates
workstream.
- need focus on inequalities and the differential experience of people
in the borough and people with protected characteristics (especially
older people and mental ill heath). Need to embed into processes so
working to deliver what is needed for communities not just
remodelling.
The committee requests the SD Health and Adults to look further at the
savings made to the Addictions Service: – be reviewed in conjunction
with the Alcohol Strategy

Final
update on
this
(22/3/18)
agenda

G

Ongoing

A

A

Page 72

To note the update

23 March 2017
PRE MEETING PLANNING
Lead
Officer/
Author

Report Title & Key Points

POST MEETING ACTIONS
Outcome & Actions Arising

Lead

Status

Deadline

Status

Meeting Theme: Housing
TT/
EC

Recommendation
noted and responded
to in Cabinet report

TT

Recommendation
noted and responded
to in Cabinet report

NW

New training
programme expected
late spring 2018 – to
include MH training

RS/
MG

Expected spring/
summer 2018

NW

Response provided
16/6/17

JH

Response provided
16/6/17

Page 73

MG/TT

Lambeth’s Housing Strategy
2017-20

1. The committee welcomes the fact that the Council
will use its purchasing power through major
contracts to secure employment and
apprenticeships for local residents. However,
Members believe current performance in this field to
be inadequate and wish to see a stronger
commitment in the strategy
2. The committee wishes to see a greater commitment
to working with other council departments to ensure
appropriate planning in terms of provision of housing
options for vulnerable residents with specific needs
(paying particular attention to future proofing – e.g.
in relation to children with disabilities and their
projected future needs)
3. The committee commends the training which has
taken place of officers and contractors in relation to
safeguarding but wishes to see this extended to
include mental health training. Members also wish to
see this training extended to sub-contractors
4. Members request the opportunity to see and
comment on the social housing charter which
governs the Council’s relationship with Housing
Associations as it is being redrafted.
5. The committee notes that recycling rates on housing
estates are poor compared to street properties.
While it is acknowledged that this is a difficult issue
to tackle and attempts have been made in the past
to address this, it is requested that officers look
again at what can be done to try to improve
recycling on estates
6. The committee notes the points raised by
Cressingham Gardens resident Gerlinde Gniewosz
and requests that officers provide a written response

Spring
2018
A
Spring/
Summer
2018

18 May 2017
PRE MEETING PLANNING
Lead
Officer/
Author

POST MEETING ACTIONS

Report Title & Key Points

Outcome & Actions Arising

Lead

Status

Deadline

1. That the committee welcomes the commitment to
establishing a Tackling Youth Violence Strategy.
This should be co-produced with, among other
stakeholders, Black Thrive, and should take into
account the comments made by young people at
this meeting
2. That data be supplied to the committee on how
Lambeth’s crime detection rates compare to other
Boroughs
3. That officers consider how best to report on cybercrime related braches/incidents and that relevant
data then be reported back to OSC and/or
Corporate Committee as appropriate
4. That improvements be made in future
communication with staff in the aftermath of national
cyber-attacks to provide reassurance and advice at
the earliest opportunity
RESOLVED:

KA

Initial report on
strategy going to
Cabinet in March 2018

Spring
2018

RW

Data supplied 12/6/17;
LBL rates compare
favourably

Status

Meeting Theme: Crime & Disorder
RESOLVED:

AH

Youth Offending Service:
Progress Report 2016/17

1. That a breakdown of the demographics (including
gender and ethnicity) of the current YOS workforce
to be provided to the committee
2. That efforts be made to ensure the Children &
Young People’s Plan is co-produced with
councillors, service users and Scrutiny (noting that
the newly-established Children’s Services Scrutiny
Sub-Committee will be assuming responsibility for
scrutiny of the Youth Offending Service going
forward)

A

JB
Info circulated to
Members
JB

MF/
MJ

CSSC to take forward

AH

CSSC to take forward

G

Page 74

KA

Safer Lambeth Partnership
Performance Update 2016/17

13 July 2017
PRE MEETING PLANNING
Lead
Officer/
Author

POST MEETING ACTIONS

Report Title & Key Points

Outcome & Actions Arising

Lead

Status

NW

Completed

NW/
SG

Addressed in report to
OSC on 1/2/18

NW/
SG

Addressed in report to
OSC on 1/2/18

NW/
SG

Addressed in report to
OSC on 1/2/18

Deadline

Status

Meeting Theme: Council Strategy/Budget
RESOLVED:

Housing Fire Safety Update

Completed
SG

G

Page 75

NW/SG

1. That the committee notes and appreciates the Fire
Safety FAQs which have been put together to
provide information and guidance to residents and
councillors but wishes to see this featured more
prominently on the homepage of the main council
website
2. That the committee notes the intention to publish the
current Fire Risk Assessment of every housing
block, including identified actions and associated
timescales, and wishes to see this take place as
soon as practicable
3. That the committee requests officers look into the
feasibility of conducting portable appliance testing in
housing blocks in order to ensure electrical safety
and reduce the risk of fire
4. That officers consider ways of communicating fire
safety advice to residents who do not speak English
as their first language beyond simply stating that
such documents can be translated online
5. That officers provide a written response within 14
days regarding the council’s compliance with the
requirement to conduct fire risk assessments before
and after any substantial variation to housing blocks

RESOLVED:

CT/HB

Update on the Organisational
Redesign Programme

1. That the committee notes the challenges inherent in
the Organisational Redesign programme and
associated savings targets while acknowledging the
mitigations in place for the risks identified, and
wishes to return to this at a future meeting to
monitor progress

GO

Budget report taken at
1/2/18 meeting
G

EC

Completed

HB

Completed

GO

Update report on this
(22/3/18) agenda

Page 76

JB

Scrutiny of July Financial
Planning Report 2017/18 to
2019/20

1. That the committee notes its concern at the
council’s budgetary position – in particular the rate
at which reserves and balances have reduced in
recent years – and identifies the following issues for
ongoing scrutiny:
- The issues regarding Section 20 receipts as
detailed in para. 2.86 of the Financial Planning and
Medium Term Strategy 2017/18 to 2019/20 Cabinet
report. It is proposed that these be examined further
at the next Housing-themed Overview & Scrutiny
Committee meeting
- The budget position with regards to SEN transport.
It is proposed that this be considered further via the
Children’s Services Scrutiny Sub-Committee
2. That the committee requests in writing further details
on what is being done to manage the debt held by
the council with regards to Housing Benefit
overpayments. This should include an age debt
profile
RESOLVED:

G

RESOLVED:

CP

Borough Plan Implementation

1. That the committee appreciates the clarity and
comprehensiveness of the Borough Plan
Prioritisation Table, which provides a useful tool for
scrutiny of the Administration’s priority outcomes,
and plans to monitor this on a regular basis at future
meetings as it evolves
2. That the committee seeks reassurance that
appropriately granular data is being captured to
enable performance against the Borough Plan
outcomes to be effectively monitored according to
the nine protected characteristics outlined in the
Equality Act 2010
3. That the committee requests details from officers of
the various forums which exist that enable multiple
stakeholders to input into the implementation of the
Borough Plan outcome priorities, and how residents
can engage with these

GO

Update report included
on this agenda

CP

Work ongoing to
ensure appropriate
data is being captured
and used

CP

A

Completed

Page 77

RESOLVED:

TW

Annual Performance Report
2016/17

1. That the committee notes the extremely high volume
of Freedom of Information requests received by the
council and the associated resource implications,
and suggests that a renewed approach to vexatious
requests and open data could help to manage these
more effectively. To this end, the digital
advancements being carried out as part of the
Organisational Redesign programme should have a
particular focus on openness and transparency

JB

Ongoing

A

19 October 2017
PRE MEETING PLANNING
Lead
Officer

POST MEETING ACTIONS

Report Title & Key Points

Outcome & Actions Arising

Lead

Status

Deadline

Status

Meeting Theme: Equalities
RESOLVED:

Lambeth Equality Commission
Implementation

JT

EC aligned with BP
outcomes; new PIs
being developed where
needed

JT

Commissioners to play
ongoing role; additional
governance structures
to include service
users

JT

In process of being put
in place

JT

Meetings held with BT
Director

JT

JT

JT

Pending.
Corporate EIA Panel to
oversee changes in
service delivery and
impact on communities
EC officers to meet
LEAP/Education
Colleagues to discuss
Already being done
as part of mgt training;
to be prioritised as
part of 2018 staff devt
plan

A

Page 78

JT

1. That the process for implementing the commission’s
recommendations should have a strong focus on
data, including robust SMART targets based on
outcomes
2. That governance processes for driving and
overseeing the implementation of the commission’s
recommendations should include appropriate
representation of the target communities, and that
co-production and inclusive decision making should
be instrumental at every level
3. That consideration be given to establishing a formal
process requiring diverse candidate shortlists for
senior leadership roles
4. That a formal link be established between the
commission and Black Thrive to support the
coordination and delivery of the commission’s
recommendations
5. That every effort be made to maintain culturally
specific services in the borough in the face of
financial pressures by developing strong
relationships and working closely with relevant
organisations, and lobbying to ensure appropriate
resources are in place
6. That a particular focus be place on the importance
of early years peer parenting in tackling inequalities,
as per recommendation 8 of the 2014 Black Health
& Wellbeing Commission report
7. That training on equalities and unconscious bias be
considered covering all levels of the organisation,
noting the issues described in the Lambeth Schools
Research and Statistics Unit report Black Caribbean
Underachievement in Schools in England

RESOLVED:

EC

Jobs For All Scrutiny
Commission

EC

Commission in the
process of considering
comments and
producing final
recommendations and
report

A

Page 79

1. That the report be endorsed and approved for
presentation to Cabinet subject to consideration of
the comments made by Members of the committee;
specifically:
 The possibility of setting a target for the
number of employment opportunities
generated by the council via its procurement
and commissioning activity (with reference
to the Housing Association industry
standard of one job created per £1m spend)
 Further consideration of Planning and
Licensing issues including restricting the
conversion of business/retail space to
residential, and the impact of the licensed
trade / night time economy on local jobs
 The potential to establish links between
voluntary sector organisations in Lambeth
and the City Bridge Trust’s Bridge to Work
programme
 The possibility of a tighter focus on the
11,500 people in the borough who are
actively looking for employment, with
reference to the equalities data relating to
this cohort and the need for flexible
employment opportunities
 The importance of having more
opportunities for progression from entry
level jobs into sustainable employment

RESOLVED:

GO

Accessibility of Council Digital
Services Scrutiny Commission

1. That the report be endorsed and approved for
presentation to Cabinet subject to consideration of
the comments made by Members of the committee;
specifically:
 Whether to amend recommendation 11 to
clarify the intent in light of the concerns
raised regarding potential vulnerability to
cyber-crime
 Whether to amend recommendation 17 to
restrict the proposed assessments for
determining requirements for special
equipment to those who request one in
order to focus resources

GO

Wording amended to
clarify intent of
recommendation

G

Commission decided to
leave as is

RESOLVED:

Borough Plan Implementation

CP
Future reporting
arrangements
(including use of data
and benchmarking)
currently under review
pending potential
scrutiny commission on
performance
management

A

Page 80

CP

1. To note the report
2. To recommend the following future reporting
arrangements:
 That responsible Cabinet Members be
assigned to all outcomes
 That more data on key performance
indicators and targets be included
 That benchmarking data be included
wherever possible
 That more context be given in the cover
report for future iterations

7 December 2017
Lead
Officer

Report Title & Key Points

Outcome & Actions Arising

Lead

Status

Deadline

Status

Meeting Theme: Mental Health / Transport

Living Well Network Alliance –
Progress Report

A
MM

GO/
EC

MM

MM

Commission plans
under consideration

Page 81

MM

RESOLVED:
1. To make the following comments for consideration:
 That the committee endorses the principle
of the Alliance approach as set out in the
report and believes this to be a sensible and
pragmatic way of trying to achieve better
outcomes and make savings, while also
noting the risks attached
 That the Alliance approach is consistent
with early intervention principles endorsed
by OSC across services including
community safety and education
 That the importance of developing a robust
performance management framework with
measurable targets backed up by good
quality data be highlighted; further, to note
that OSC intends to establish a short term
scrutiny commission looking at such issues
on a council-wide basis in early 2018 and
offers to use that opportunity to assist
officers working on the Alliance contract in
any way it can
 That opportunities to work with Housing on
supported accommodation as part of the
Alliance should be maximised
 That service users should be involved in
designing and shaping the Alliance as much
as possible, including through existing
mechanisms such as Black Thrive and
HealthWatch

RESOLVED:

SF/SP

Update on the Lambeth Long
Term Transport Strategy

SF/
SP

SF/
SP

SF/
SP

SF/
SP

A

Page 82

1. To note the early findings of the Lambeth Long
Term Transport Strategy
2. To note the work undertaken that has been
supported by the Lambeth Long Term Transport
Strategy
3. To note the timetable for the Lambeth Long Term
Transport Strategy
4. To make the following comments for consideration:
 That a regular car free day be considered to
encourage motorists to think more about
modal shift
 That more needs to be done to cut bus
emissions including in the north of the
borough
 That Lambeth’s response to the Mayor of
London’s new London Plan should suggest
that more consideration be given to
motorcycle parking
 That the proposed Member workshops
which form part of the consultation process
for the Transport Strategy be organised
sufficiently ahead of time in order that
Members can consult with local groups
 That the committee supports formal
measures aimed at freight/delivery
consolidation particularly in relation to
smaller businesses

RESOLVED:

SP

Equality Streets Scrutiny
Commission – Action Plan
Update

SP

SP

A

SP
SP

Page 83

1. To note the contents of the update Action Plan
2. To make the following comments for consideration:
 That it be reiterated that the commission’s
recommendations should be assimilated
into the Transport Strategy, particularly with
regards to improving the quality of the
environment (noting the positive effect of
greening on modal shift and mental health
and wellbeing) and the flood risk posed by
hard landscaping
 That officers investigate whether the Fix My
Street application is (or can be) integrated
into relevant Lambeth and Veolia systems in
order to help target resources to known hot
spots
 That increased parking enforcement is
needed in areas not covered by CPZs
 That renewed consideration be given to the
proposals around crossovers
(recommendation 12)

1 February 2018
Lead
Officer

Report Title & Key Points

Outcome & Actions Arising

Lead

Status

SG

Awaited

SH

Completed

Deadline

Status

Meeting Theme: Fire Safety / Budget

SG

Housing Fire Safety Update

A

Page 84

RESOLVED:
1. That the report on the feasibility of retrofitting
sprinklers referred to by the Cabinet Member for
Housing & Environment be provided to the
committee when available in order that Members
can fully understand the technical and financial
considerations
2. That the committee has concerns regarding the
diligence of Regenter historically in relation to
undertaking health and safety-related works at
Myatt’s Field North and therefore requests more
detail on how Regenter are responding to the Fire
Risk Assessments undertaken on the estate and
resultant actions required

RESOLVED:

Revenue and Capital Budget
Report 2018/19 to 2020/21

For follow up in
2018/19 – to be
scheduled

Completed

A

Page 85

CT

1. That the committee notes the additional resources
being put in to attempt to collect more historical
housing benefit overpayment debt, along with the
fact that lobbying is taking place via London
Councils and the Local Government Association
regarding the possibility of transferring this debt
back to the Department for Work and Pensions once
Universal Credit has been rolled out, but wishes to
see efforts redoubled in this regard
2. That the committee is pleased to see the new SEN
transport contract commence, albeit after much
delay, but requests future updates to reassure
Members that expected savings are being realised
and service levels are being met
3. That more focus is needed on the pipeline of
demand with regards to children with special
educational needs and disabilities (SEND) who will
require Education, Health & Care (EHC) plans when
they start school, and that central government be
lobbied regarding the need for a funding system
which better responds to the demand
4. That the committee notes the plans in place to
replenish the Council’s reserves but wishes to see
these further strengthened
5. That the committee commends the work being done
around the social housing investment fund but that a
greater focus is needed on reducing costs and
growing income streams more widely. The
committee notes that a Commercial Strategy is
expected in the coming financial year and wishes to
further explore this matter at the appropriate
juncture
6. That the committee notes its concerns at recent
developments involving Capita and, while
welcoming the reassurances given regarding
monitoring and business continuity planning, wishes
to see more detail on how this risk is being
managed

7. That the reporting of fees and charges in the budget
report be enhanced in future to give more detail
regarding how levels are set, such as benchmarking
and criteria used
8. That the committee agrees with the King’s Fund
assessment that ‘cuts to public health are the falsest
of false economies’ and recommends that the
Council does not make cuts additional to the 26%
cut already being made to public health by central
government. Any efficiencies made in public health
should be reinvested directly in public health to
prevent illness and treat people with addiction and
sexual health conditions. Preventing and treating
illness early saves lives and money.

Page 86

